SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM S-3 REGISTRATION STATEMENT

UNDER

THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter and translation of registrant's name into English)

Israel (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel +972-3-914-8213

(Address and telephone number of registrant's principal executive offices)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE IV, LLC (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

E IV, LLC TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE V, LLC (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 22-1734359 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.) Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 22-1734359 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE VI, LLC (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 22-1734359 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

400 Interpace Parkway, Building A Parsippany, NJ 07054 Attention: Asaph Namaan (800) 545-8800

(Address and telephone number of registrant's principal executive offices)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS II B.V. (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Netherlands (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) N/A (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS III B.V.

 $(Exact\ name\ of\ registrant\ as\ specified\ in\ its\ charter)$

Netherlands (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) N/A (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS IV B.V. (Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Netherlands (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) N/A (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

Piet Heinkade 107 1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands Attention: Bibianne Bon +31 (0)20-2193000

 $(Address\ and\ telephone\ number\ of\ registrant's\ principal\ executive\ offices)$

Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc.
400 Interpace Parkway, Building A, Parsippany, NJ 07054
Attention: Asaph Namaan
(800) 545-8800
(Name, address and telephone number of agent for service)

with copies to:

Joshua N. Korff, P.C. Ross M. Leff P.C. Kirkland & Ellis LLP 601 Lexington Avenue New York, New York 10022 (212) 446-4800

| Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: Fr | | | C | |
|--|--|---|--|--|
| If the only securities being registered on this Form are being offered p If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered | | | | · – |
| other than securities offered only in connection with dividend or interest rei | investment plans, che | ck the following box. [| \times | |
| If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pure Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registra | suant to Rule 462(b) u tion statement for the | ander the Securities Act same offering. | t, please check the follo | owing box and list the |
| If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(egistration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement | | | ing box and list the Sec | curities Act |
| If this Form is a registration statement pursuant to General Instruction he Commission pursuant to Rule 462(e) under the Securities Act, check the | I.D. or a post-effective following box. $\boxed{\times}$ | ve amendment thereto the | hat shall become effect | ive upon filing with |
| If this Form is a post-effective amendment to a registration statement fulditional classes of securities pursuant to Rule 413(b) under the Securities | | | d to register additional | securities or |
| Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filemerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. | er, an accelerated file "accelerated filer," "s | r, a non-accelerated file maller reporting compa | er, a smaller reporting cany" and "emerging gro | company, or an owth company" in |
| Large accelerated filer X | | | Accelerat | ted filer |
| Non-accelerated filer | | | Smaller r | eporting company |
| ton accelerated filer | | | | |
| If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registratevised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 7(a)(2) | (B) of the Securities A | Act. - | 0 0 | g growth company Ing with any new or |
| CALCULATIO | N OF REGISTRAT | 1 | 1 | |
| Title of each class of securities to be registered | Amount to be registered (1) | Proposed maximum offering price per unit (1) | Proposed maximum aggregate offering price (1) | Amount of registration fee (1) |
| Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited Ordinary Shares (2) | | | | |
| Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited Purchase Contracts (3)(4) | | | | |
| Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited Units (3)(5) | | | | |
| Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited Senior Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited Subordinated Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Teva Pharmaceutical Finance IV, LLC Senior Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Feva Pharmaceutical Finance IV, LLC Subordinated Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Teva Pharmaceutical Finance V, LLC Senior Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Feva Pharmaceutical Finance V, LLC Subordinated Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Teva Pharmaceutical Finance VI, LLC Senior Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Feva Pharmaceutical Finance VI, LLC Subordinated Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Feva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V. Senior Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Securities (3) | | | | |
| Feva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V. Senior Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Feva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V. Subordinated Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Feva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V. Senior Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Feva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V. Subordinated Debt Securities (3) | | | | |
| Guarantees by Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited of Debt Securities of each finance subsidiary listed above (6) | | | | |
| Pursuant to General Instruction II.E of Form S-3, not specified as to eat together or as units with other offered securities. An indeterminate agg | ach class of securities gregate initial offering | to be registered. These price, principal amour | offered securities may | be sold separately, es of each identified |

- (1) Pursuant to General Instruction II.E of Form S-3, not specified as to each class of securities to be registered. These offered securities may be sold separately, together or as units with other offered securities. An indeterminate aggregate initial offering price, principal amount or number of securities of each identified class is being registered as may from time to time be issued at indeterminate prices. Separate consideration may or may not be received for securities that are issuable on exercise, conversion or exchange of other securities or that are issued in units or represented by depositary shares. Securities registered hereunder may be offered in U.S. dollars or the equivalent thereof in foreign currencies. In reliance on Rules 456(b) and 457(r) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant is deferring payment of the registration fees until such fees become payable in connection with specific offerings of such securities.
- (2) Such ordinary shares may be represented by American Depositary Shares. Such American Depositary Shares are or will be registered on a separately filed registration statement on Form F-6. Each American Depositary Share represents one ordinary share.
- (3) Also includes such currently indeterminate number of ordinary shares of Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited as may be issued upon conversion of or exchange for any securities that provide for conversion or exchange into such ordinary shares.
- (4) There are being registered hereby such indeterminate number of Purchase Contracts as may be issued at indeterminate prices. Such Purchase Contracts may be issued together with any of the other securities being registered hereby. Purchase Contracts may require the holder thereof to purchase or sell any of the other securities registered hereby or to purchase or sell a basket of such securities, an index or indices of such securities or any combination of the above.
- (5) There are being registered hereby such indeterminate number of Units as may be issued at indeterminate prices. Units may consist of any combination of the securities being registered hereby or an indeterminate number of ordinary shares of Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited.
- (6) The guarantees will be issued by Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited. No separate consideration will be received for any of these guarantees.

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

American Depositary Shares, each representing one Ordinary Share, Debt Securities, Purchase Contracts and Units

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE IV, LLC
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE V, LLC
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE VI, LLC
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS II B.V.
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS III B.V.
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS IV B.V.

Debt Securities, fully and unconditionally guaranteed by TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited and its finance subsidiaries ("Teva," the "Company," "we," "us" or "our") may offer and sell from time to time:

- American Depositary Shares ("ADSs"), each representing one ordinary share;
- senior or subordinated debt securities;
- purchase contracts; and
- units.

This prospectus describes some of the general terms that may apply to the securities. Teva will provide the specific terms and public offering prices of these securities in supplements to this prospectus. Before investing, you should carefully read this prospectus and any related prospectus supplement, including any document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into this prospectus or any prospectus supplement. The prospectus supplements may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. Our registration of securities covered by this prospectus does not mean that we will offer or sell any securities.

We may sell these securities to or through one or more underwriters, dealers or agents, or directly to purchasers, on a continuous or delayed basis. The names of any underwriters, dealers or agents will be stated in a supplement to this prospectus.

Our ADSs are quoted on the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE") under the symbol "TEVA." On October 26, 2021, the last reported sale price for the ADSs on the NYSE was \$9.39. If we decide to list any of these securities on a national securities exchange upon issuance, the applicable prospectus supplement to this prospectus will identify the exchange and the date when we expect trading to begin.

Our principal executive offices are located at 124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street, Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel, and our telephone number is +972-3-914-8213 .

You should carefully read this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement, together with the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein, and any free writing prospectus, before you make an investment decision.

Investing in our securities involves risks. You should consider the risk factors described in any accompanying prospectus supplement and the documents we incorporate by reference. See "Risk Factors" on page 4 of this prospectus.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is October 27, 2021.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS | 1 |
|---|----|
| TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED | 2 |
| FINANCE SUBSIDIARIES | 3 |
| RISK FACTORS | 4 |
| FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS | 5 |
| USE OF PROCEEDS | 7 |
| DESCRIPTION OF ORDINARY SHARES | 8 |
| DESCRIPTION OF AMERICAN DEPOSITARY SHARES | 4 |
| DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES AND GUARANTEES | 24 |
| DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE CONTRACTS | 34 |
| DESCRIPTION OF UNITS | 35 |
| TAXATION 3 | 6 |
| PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION | 37 |
| EXPERTS 4 | 10 |
| LEGAL MATTERS 4 | 10 |
| WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION | 1 |
| ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES 4 | 13 |

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a Registration Statement that Teva and the other registrants filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") as a "well-known seasoned issuer" as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), utilizing a "shelf" registration process. Under this shelf process, any of the registrants may, from time to time, sell the securities described in this prospectus in one or more offerings.

This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities which we may offer and the related guarantees, if any, of those securities. Each time we sell securities we will provide a prospectus supplement that will contain specific information about the terms of the offering. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus. You should read both this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with additional information described below under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information" before purchasing any of our securities.

We have not authorized anyone to provide any information or to make any representation other than those contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. "Incorporated by reference" means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. We have not authorized any other person to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are not making, and we will not make, an offer to sell securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should assume that the information appearing in this prospectus and any supplement to this prospectus is current only as of the dates on their respective covers. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since that date.

Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this prospectus and any supplement to this prospectus to "Teva," "we," "us" and "our" refer to Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited and its subsidiaries, collectively. References to "Teva Finance IV LLC" refer to Teva Pharmaceutical Finance IV, LLC. References to "Teva Finance VI LLC" refer to Teva Pharmaceutical Finance V, LLC. References to "Teva Finance VI LLC, Teva Finance V LLC and Teva Finance VI LLC. References to "Teva Finance Netherlands II" refer to Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V. References to "Teva Finance Netherlands III" refer to Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V. References to "Teva Finance Netherlands IV" refer to Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V. References to the "Netherlands BVs" refer to Teva Finance Netherlands II, Teva Finance Netherlands III and Teva Finance Netherlands IV. References to the "Standard References to the ULCs, and the Netherlands BVs, collectively.

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Business Overview

We are a global pharmaceutical company, committed to helping patients around the world to access affordable medicines and benefit from innovations to improve their health. Our mission is to be a global leader in generics, specialty medicines and biopharmaceuticals, improving the lives of patients.

We operate worldwide, with headquarters in Israel and a significant presence in the United States, Europe and many other markets around the world. Our key strengths include our world-leading generic medicines expertise and portfolio, focused specialty medicines portfolio and global infrastructure and scale.

Teva was incorporated in Israel on February 13, 1944 and is the successor to a number of Israeli corporations, the oldest of which was established in 1901.

Our Business Segments

We operate our business through three segments: North America, Europe and International Markets. Each business segment manages our entire product portfolio in its region, including generics, specialty and over-the-counter ("OTC") products. This structure enables strong alignment and integration between operations, commercial regions, R&D and our global marketing and portfolio function, optimizing our product lifecycle across therapeutic areas.

In addition to these three segments, we have other activities, primarily the sale of active pharmaceutical ingredients ("API") to third parties, certain contract manufacturing services and an out-licensing platform offering a portfolio of products to other pharmaceutical companies through our affiliate Medis.

FINANCE SUBSIDIARIES

Teva has organized various finance subsidiaries for the purpose of issuing debt securities. There are no separate financial statements of the finance subsidiaries in this prospectus because these entities are, or will be treated as, subsidiaries of Teva for financial reporting purposes. We do not believe the financial statements would be helpful to the holders of the securities of these entities because:

- Teva is a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") and owns, directly or indirectly, all of the voting interests of these entities;
- these entities do not have any independent operations and do not propose to engage in any activities other than issuing securities and investing the proceeds in Teva or its affiliates; and
- these entities' obligations under the securities will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Teva. These entities are exempt from the information reporting requirements of the Exchange Act.

Teva Finance IV LLC

Teva Finance IV LLC is a limited liability company that was formed on December 1, 2008 under the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, as amended. Its address is 400 Interpace Parkway, Building A, Parsippany, NJ 07054, telephone number (800) 545-8800.

Teva Finance V LLC

Teva Finance V LLC is a limited liability company that was formed on December 1, 2011 under the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, as amended. Its address is 400 Interpace Parkway, Building A, Parsippany, NJ 07054, telephone number (800) 545-8800.

Teva Finance VI LLC

Teva Finance VI LLC is a limited liability company that was formed on December 1, 2011 under the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, as amended. Its address is 400 Interpace Parkway, Building A, Parsippany, NJ 07054, telephone number (800) 545-8800.

Teva Finance Netherlands II

Teva Finance Netherlands II is a Dutch private limited liability company that was formed on October 16, 2013. Its address is Piet Heinkade 107, 1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands, telephone number +31 (0)20-2193000.

Teva Finance Netherlands III

Teva Finance Netherlands III is a Dutch private limited liability company that was formed on September 21, 2015. Its address is Piet Heinkade 107, 1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands, telephone number +31 (0)20-2193000.

Teva Finance Netherlands IV

Teva Finance Netherlands IV is a Dutch private limited liability company that was formed on April 22, 2016. Its address is Piet Heinkade 107, 1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands, telephone number +31 (0)20-2193000.

RISK FACTORS

Investing in our securities involves risk. Please see the risks incorporated by reference from our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, the risk factors described under the caption "Risk Factors" in any applicable prospectus supplement and any risk factors set forth in our other filings with the SEC. See "Where You Can Find More Information—Incorporation by Reference." Our business, financial condition, liquidity or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risks. Before making an investment decision, you should carefully consider these risks as well as other information we include or incorporate by reference in this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus supplement.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The disclosure and analysis in this prospectus, including statements that are predictive in nature, or that depend upon or refer to future events or conditions, contain or incorporate by reference some forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Exchange Act and Section 27A of the Securities Act, which are based on management's current beliefs and expectations and are subject to substantial risks and uncertainties, both known and unknown, that could cause our future results, performance or achievements to differ significantly from that expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. You can identify these forward-looking statements by the use of words such as "should," "expect," "anticipate," "estimate," "target," "may," "project," "guidance," "intend," "plan," "believe" and other words and terms of similar meaning and expression in connection with any discussion of future operating or financial performance. Important factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include risks relating to:

- our ability to successfully compete in the marketplace, including: that we are substantially dependent on our generic products; consolidation of our customer base and commercial alliances among our customers; delays in launches of new generic products; the increase in the number of competitors targeting generic opportunities and seeking U.S. market exclusivity for generic versions of significant products; our ability to develop and commercialize biopharmaceutical products; competition for our specialty products, including AUSTEDO®, AJOVY® and COPAXONE®; our ability to achieve expected results from investments in our product pipeline; our ability to develop and commercialize additional pharmaceutical products; and the effectiveness of our patents and other measures to protect our intellectual property rights;
- our substantial indebtedness, which may limit our ability to incur additional indebtedness, engage in additional transactions or make new investments, may result in a further downgrade of our credit ratings; and our inability to raise debt or borrow funds in amounts or on terms that are favorable to us;
- our business and operations in general, including: uncertainty regarding the COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on our business, financial condition, operations, cash flows, and liquidity and on the economy in general; our ability to successfully execute and maintain the activities and efforts related to the measures we have taken or may take in response to the COVID-19 pandemic and associated costs therewith; effectiveness of our optimization efforts; our ability to attract, hire and retain highly skilled personnel; manufacturing or quality control problems; interruptions in our supply chain; disruptions of information technology systems; breaches of our data security; variations in intellectual property laws; challenges associated with conducting business globally, including political or economic instability, major hostilities or terrorism; costs and delays resulting from the extensive pharmaceutical regulation to which we are subject or delays in governmental processing time due to travel and work restrictions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic; the effects of reforms in healthcare regulation and reductions in pharmaceutical pricing, reimbursement and coverage; significant sales to a limited number of customers; our ability to successfully bid for suitable acquisition targets or licensing opportunities, or to consummate and integrate acquisitions; and our prospects and opportunities for growth if we sell assets:
- compliance, regulatory and litigation matters, including: failure to comply with complex legal and
 regulatory environments; increased legal and regulatory action in connection with public concern over
 the abuse of opioid medications and our ability to reach a final resolution of the remaining opioidrelated litigation; scrutiny from competition and pricing authorities around the world, including our
 ability to successfully defend against the U.S. Department of Justice criminal charges of Sherman Act
 violations; potential liability for patent infringement; product liability claims; failure to comply with
 complex Medicare and Medicaid reporting and payment obligations; compliance with anti-corruption
 sanctions and trade control laws; and environmental risks; and
- other financial and economic risks, including: our exposure to currency fluctuations and restrictions as well as credit risks; potential impairments of our intangible assets; potential significant increases in tax

liabilities (including as a result of potential tax reform in the United States); and the effect on our overall effective tax rate of the termination or expiration of governmental programs or tax benefits, or of a change in our business.

The forward-looking statements contained or incorporated by reference herein involve a number of known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause our future results, performance or achievements to differ significantly from the results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. You should understand that many important factors, in addition to those discussed or incorporated by reference in this prospectus, could cause our results to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements. Potential factors that could affect our results, include, in addition to others not described in this prospectus, those referenced under "Risk Factors." These are factors that we think could cause our actual results to differ materially from our expected results.

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made, and we assume no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements or other information contained in this prospectus, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required by law. You are advised, however, to consult any additional disclosures we make in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, our subsequently filed Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K that are filed with the SEC. See "Risk Factors." Other factors besides those listed here could also adversely affect us.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Unless the applicable prospectus supplement states otherwise, the net proceeds from the sale of securities offered by Teva or the finance subsidiaries will be used for general corporate purposes, which may include additions to working capital, investments in or extensions of credit to our subsidiaries and the repayment of indebtedness.

DESCRIPTION OF ORDINARY SHARES

The following is a summary of the terms of Teva ordinary shares, including certain provisions contained in Teva's memorandum of association (the "Memorandum"), Teva's articles of association (the "Articles") and applicable Israeli laws in effect on the date of this Registration Statement. This summary is qualified by reference to the full text of the Memorandum and the Articles, which are incorporated by reference as exhibits hereto.

Description of Ordinary Shares

The par value of Teva's ordinary shares is NIS 0.10 per share, and all issued and outstanding ordinary shares are fully paid and non-assessable. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to participate equally in the receipt of dividends and other distributions and, in the event of liquidation, in all distributions after the discharge of liabilities to creditors. All ordinary shares represented by the ADSs will be issued in registered form only. The Israeli Companies Law, 5759-1999 (the "Companies Law") and the Articles do not provide for preemptive rights to the holders of Teva's shares. Each Teva ordinary share entitles the holder thereof to one vote.

Neither the Memorandum nor the Articles or the laws of the State of Israel restrict the ownership or voting of Teva's ordinary shares or ADSs by non-residents or persons who are not citizens of Israel, except with respect to citizens or residents of countries that are in a state of war with Israel.

General Shareholder Meetings

Under the Companies Law and the Articles, Teva is required to hold an annual general meeting every calendar year, no later than 15 months after the previous annual general meeting. In addition, Teva is required to convene a special meeting of shareholders:

- upon the demand of two directors or one-quarter of the serving directors;
- upon the demand of one or more shareholders holding at least 5% of our issued share capital and 1% or more of our voting rights; and
- upon the demand of one or more shareholders holding at least 5% of our voting rights;

provided that a demand by a shareholder to convene a special shareholders meeting must set forth the matters to be considered at the meeting and otherwise comply with all other requirements of applicable law and the Articles.

If the board of directors receives a demand to convene a special meeting satisfying the above conditions, it must announce the scheduling of the meeting within 21 days after the demand was delivered, subject to the relevant requirements of the Companies Law and the regulations thereunder. If the board of directors fails to do so, the party who demanded to convene the special meeting may convene the meeting itself, subject to the provisions of the Companies Law.

The agenda of a general meeting is determined by the board of directors. The agenda must also include matters for which the convening of a special meeting was demanded, as well as any matter requested by one or more shareholders who hold at least 1% of Teva's voting rights, subject to complying with certain requirements. Pursuant to Israeli law, a Teva shareholder who wishes to include a matter on the agenda of a general meeting must submit the request within seven days of publication of the notice with respect to the general meeting or within 14 days of a preliminary notice of the intention to convene the general meeting, if such was filed, in order for it to be eligible to be considered at the general meeting. Under the Articles, a request by a shareholder who holds at least 1% of Teva's voting rights to include a matter on the agenda of a general meeting must be submitted in writing to Teva no later than 14 days after the first publication of Teva's annual consolidated financial statements preceding the annual general meeting at which the consolidated financial statements for such year are to be presented. Any such demands or requests must comply with the requirements of applicable law, applicable stock exchange rules and the Articles.

Notices

Pursuant to the Companies Law, the regulations thereunder and the Articles, Teva is generally required to announce the convening of general meetings at least 35 days in advance, but is not required to deliver personal notices of a general meeting or of any adjournment thereof to shareholders. Teva may reasonably determine the method of publicizing the convening of general meetings, including by publishing a notice in one or more daily newspapers in Israel or in one or more international wire services, and any such publication will be deemed to have been duly given and delivered on the date of such publication. Shareholders as of the record date determined in respect of the general meeting are entitled to participate in and vote at the meeting. The Articles require that shareholder meetings take place in Israel, unless Teva's center of management has been transferred to another country in accordance with the Articles.

Voting and Quorum Requirements

The quorum required for a general meeting of shareholders is at least two shareholders present in person or by proxy or represented by an authorized representative, who jointly hold at least 25% of our paid-up share capital. If a meeting is adjourned for lack of a quorum, it will generally be adjourned to the same time and place on the same day of the following week unless the board of directors sets another date, time and place in a notice to all persons who are entitled to receive notice of general meetings. Should no legal quorum be present at such reconvened meeting a half hour following the time set for such meeting, the necessary quorum consists of any two shareholders present, in person or by proxy, who jointly hold at least 20% of Teva's paid-up share capital.

A shareholder who intends to vote at a meeting must demonstrate ownership of shares in accordance with the Companies Law and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

Shareholder Resolutions

The Companies Law provides that resolutions on certain matters, such as amending a company's articles of association, exercising the authority of the board of directors in certain circumstances, appointing auditors, approving certain transactions, increasing or decreasing the registered share capital and approving certain mergers, must be approved by the shareholders at a general meeting. A company may determine in its articles of association certain additional matters with respect to which decisions will be made by the shareholders at a general meeting.

Generally, under the Articles, shareholder resolutions are deemed adopted if approved by the holders of a simple majority of the voting rights represented at a general meeting in person or by proxy and voting, unless a different majority is required by law or the Articles. Pursuant to the Companies Law and the Articles, certain shareholder resolutions (for example, resolutions amending many of the provisions of the Articles) require the affirmative vote of at least 75% of the voting rights represented at a general meeting and voting in person or by proxy, and certain other amendments to the Articles require the affirmative vote of at least 85% of the voting rights represented in a general meeting voting in person or by proxy, unless the board of directors sets a lower percentage, by a supermajority of three-quarters of the voting directors.

Change of Control

Subject to certain exceptions, the Companies Law requires that a merger (which, for these purposes, is defined as involving two Israeli companies) be approved by both the board of directors and by the shareholders of each of the merging companies and, with respect to the target company, if its share capital is divided into more than one class, the approval of each class of shares is required (in accordance with the majority and legal quorum requirements set forth in the Companies Law and the Articles). However, a merger may not be approved if it is objected to by shareholders holding a majority of the voting rights participating and voting at the meeting (disregarding any abstentions), after excluding the shares held by the other party to the merger, by any person

who holds 25% or more of the other party to the merger or by anyone on their behalf, including the relatives of or corporations controlled by these persons, unless an Israeli court determines otherwise at the request of shareholders holding at least 25% of the voting rights of the company.

In approving a merger, the board of directors of both merging companies must determine that there is no reasonable concern that, as a result of the merger, the surviving company will not be able to satisfy its obligations to its creditors. Similarly, upon the request of a creditor of either party to the proposed merger, an Israeli court may prevent or delay the merger if it concludes that there exists a reasonable concern that, as a result of the merger, the surviving company will not be able to satisfy the obligations of the merging parties. A court may also issue other instructions for the protection of creditors' rights in connection with a merger. Further, a merger may not be completed unless at least (i) 50 days have passed from the time that the requisite proposals for the approval of the merger were filed with the Israeli Registrar of Companies; and (ii) 30 days have passed since the merger was approved by the shareholders of each party to the merger.

Under the Companies Law, subject to certain exceptions, an acquisition of shares in a public company must be made by means of a tender offer if, as a result of the acquisition, the purchaser would hold (i) 25% or more of the voting rights of the company if there is no other holder of 25% or more of the company's voting rights; or (ii) more than 45% of the voting rights of the company if there is no other holder of more than 45% of the company's voting rights. This requirement does not apply to certain events set forth in the Companies Law, including a purchase of shares by an offeree in a "private placement" that receives specific shareholder approval. The board of directors must either give the shareholders its opinion as to the advisability of the tender offer or explain why it is unable to do so. The board of directors must also disclose any personal interest of any of its members in the proposed acquisition. The tender offer may be consummated only if (i) at least 5% of the company's voting rights will be acquired; and (ii) the majority of the offerees who responded to the offer accepted the offer, excluding offerees who are controlling shareholders of the offeror, offerees who hold 25% or more of the voting rights in the company or who have a personal interest in accepting the tender offer, or anyone on their behalf or on behalf of the offeror including the relatives of or corporations controlled by these persons.

Under the Companies Law, a person may not acquire shares in a public company if, after the acquisition, he will hold more than 90% of the shares or more than 90% of any class of shares of that company, unless a tender offer is made to purchase all of the shares or all of the shares of the particular class, which we refer to as a full tender offer. The Companies Law also generally provides that as long as a shareholder in a public company holds more than 90% of the company's shares or of a class of shares, that shareholder shall be precluded from purchasing any additional shares. In order that all of the shares that the purchaser offered to purchase be transferred to the purchaser by operation of law, one of the following must have occurred: (i) the shareholders who declined or who did not respond to the full tender offer hold less than 5% of the company's outstanding share capital or of the relevant class of shares and the majority of offerees who do not have a personal interest in accepting the full tender offer accepted the offer, or (ii) the shareholders who declined or who did not respond to the full tender offer hold less than 2% of the company's outstanding share capital or of the relevant class of shares.

If the conditions set forth above are not met, the purchaser may not acquire shares of the company from shareholders who accepted the full tender offer to the extent that following such acquisition, the purchaser would own more than 90% of the company's issued and outstanding share capital or more than 90% of the particular class of shares with respect to which the full tender offer was made.

A shareholder that had his or her shares so transferred, whether he or she accepted the full tender offer or not, has the right, within six months from the date of acceptance of the full tender offer, to petition the court to determine that the full tender offer was for less than fair value and that the fair value should be paid as determined by the court. However, subject to certain conditions, the purchaser may provide in its offer that shareholders who accept the full tender offer will not be entitled to such rights.

Board of Directors

Our board of directors consists of three classes of directors plus the chief executive officer, who is not part of any class. One of the classes is elected each year by the shareholders at our annual meeting for a term of approximately three years. Elected directors cannot be removed from office by the shareholders until the expiration of their term of office, unless they violate their duties of care or loyalty.

In accordance with the Companies Law, we have elected to comply with SEC and NYSE requirements for independent directors on the Board and audit and compensation committees, in lieu of the Israeli requirements for statutory independent directors and audit committee and compensation committee composition. Following such election, we no longer designate any of our directors as statutory independent directors or designated independent directors under Israeli law.

The holders of our ordinary shares representing a majority of the voting power represented at a shareholders' meeting and voting at the meeting have the power to elect all of the directors up for election.

In general, the board of directors formulates company policy and supervises the performance of the chief executive officer. Subject to the provisions of the Companies Law and the Articles, any Teva power that has not been conferred upon another body may be exercised by the board of directors.

Neither our Memorandum or Articles, nor Israeli law, mandate retirement of directors at a certain age, or share ownership for a director's qualification.

Conflicts of Interest

Approval of Related Party Transactions

The Companies Law requires that an "office holder" (as defined in the Companies Law) of a company promptly disclose any personal interest that he or she may have and all related material information known to him or her, in connection with any existing or proposed transaction of the company.

Pursuant to the Companies Law, any transaction with an office holder or in which the office holder has a personal interest (other than with respect to such office holder's Terms of Office and Employment) must be brought before the audit committee, in order to determine whether such transaction is an "extraordinary transaction" (defined as a transaction not in the ordinary course of business, not on market terms or likely to have a material impact on the company's profitability, assets or liabilities). The term "Terms of Office and Employment," as defined in the Companies Law, includes compensation, equity-based awards, releases from liability, indemnification and insurance, severance and other benefits.

Pursuant to the Companies Law, the Articles and Teva policy, in the event the audit committee determines that the transaction is not an extraordinary transaction, the transaction will require only audit committee approval; if, however, it is determined to be an extraordinary transaction, board of directors approval is also required, and in some circumstances shareholder approval may also be required. Such a transaction may only be approved if it is determined to be in the best interests of Teva.

A person with a personal interest in the matter generally may not be present at meetings of the board of directors or certain committees where the matter is being considered and, if a member of the board of directors or a committee, may generally not vote on the matter.

Transactions with Controlling Shareholders

Under Israeli law, extraordinary transactions with a controlling shareholder or in which the controlling shareholder has a personal interest and any engagement with a controlling shareholder or a controlling

shareholder's relative with respect to the provision of services to the company or with their Terms of Office and Employment as an office holder or their employment, if they are not office holders, generally require the approval of the audit committee (or with respect to Terms of Office and Employment, the compensation committee), the board of directors and the shareholders. If required, shareholder approval must include at least a majority of the shareholders who do not have a personal interest in the transaction and are present and voting at the meeting (abstentions are disregarded), or, alternatively, that the total shareholdings of the disinterested shareholders who vote against the transaction cannot represent more than two percent of the voting rights in the company. Transactions for a period of more than three years generally need to be brought for approval in accordance with the above procedures every three years.

A shareholder who holds 25% or more of the voting rights in a company is considered a controlling shareholder for these purposes if no other shareholder holds more than 50% of the voting rights. If two or more shareholders are interested parties in the same transaction, their shareholdings are combined for the purposes of calculating percentages.

Approval of Director and Executive Officer Compensation

As required by the Companies Law, we have adopted a compensation policy regarding the Terms of Office and Employment of our office holders (the "Compensation Policy").

Pursuant to the Companies Law, arrangements between Teva and its office holders must generally be consistent with the Compensation Policy. However, under certain circumstances, we may approve an arrangement that is not consistent with the Compensation Policy, if such arrangement is approved by a special disinterested majority of our shareholders.

In addition, pursuant to the Companies Law, the Terms of Office and Employment of office holders generally require the approval of the compensation committee and the Board of Directors. The Terms of Office and Employment of directors (including those of a chief executive officer who is a director) further require the approval of the shareholders by a simple majority; with respect to a chief executive officer who is not a director, the approval of the shareholders by the special disinterested majority is also generally required. Pursuant to regulations promulgated under the Companies Law, shareholder approval is not required with respect to the remuneration granted to a director or a chief executive officer for the period following his or her appointment until the next general meeting of shareholders, provided such remuneration is approved by the compensation committee and the Board of Directors, is consistent with the Compensation Policy and is on similar or less favorable terms than those of such person's predecessor.

Under certain circumstances, if the Terms of Office and Employment of office holders who are not directors are not approved by the shareholders (where such approval is required), the compensation committee and the Board of Directors may nonetheless approve such terms. In addition, non-material amendments of the Terms of Office and Employment of office holders who are not directors may be approved by the compensation committee only and non-material amendments of the Terms of Office and Employment of executive officers other than the chief executive officer may be approved by the chief executive officer only, provided such approval is permitted under the Compensation Policy.

Insurance, Exemption and Indemnification of Directors and Executive Officers

The Companies Law provides that a company may not exempt or indemnify a director or an executive officer, or enter into an insurance contract, which would provide coverage for any liability incurred as a result of any of the following: (i) a breach by the director and/or executive officer of his or her duty of loyalty unless, with respect to insurance coverage or indemnification, due to a breach of his or her duty of loyalty to the company committed in good faith and with reasonable grounds to believe that such act would not prejudice the interests of the company; (ii) a breach by the director and/or the executive officer of his or her duty of care to the company

committed intentionally or recklessly (other than if solely done in negligence); (iii) any act or omission done with the intent of unlawfully realizing personal gain; or (iv) a fine, monetary sanction, forfeit or penalty imposed upon a director and/or executive officer. In addition, the Companies Law provides that directors and executive officers can be exempted in advance with respect to liability for damages caused as a result of a breach of their duty of care to the company (but not for such breaches committed intentionally or recklessly, as noted above, or in connection with a distribution (as defined in the Companies Law)).

Pursuant to indemnification and release agreements, we release our directors and executive officers from liability and indemnify them to the fullest extent permitted by law and the Articles. Under these agreements, our undertaking to indemnify each director and executive officer for certain payments and expenses as well as monetary liabilities imposed by a court judgment (including a settlement or an arbitrator's award that was approved by a court), which indemnification of monetary liabilities (i) shall be limited to matters that are connected or otherwise related to certain events or circumstances set forth therein, and (ii) shall not exceed \$200 million in the aggregate per director or executive officer. Under Israeli law, indemnification is subject to other limitations, including those described above. Subject to applicable law, we may also indemnify our directors and officers following specific events.

Our directors and executive officers are also covered by directors' and officers' liability insurance.

Dividends

Under the Companies Law, dividends may generally be distributed only out of profits, provided that there is no reasonable concern that the distribution will prevent us from satisfying our existing and anticipated obligations when they become due. In accordance with the Companies Law and the Articles, the decision to distribute dividends and the amount to be distributed is made by the board of directors.

CEO and Center of Management

Under the Articles, our chief executive officer is required to be a resident of Israel and our board of directors is required to consist of a meaningful representation of Israeli resident directors, unless, in each case, our center of management has been transferred to another country in accordance with the Articles. The Articles require that our center of management remain in Israel, unless the board of directors otherwise resolves, by a supermajority of three-quarters of the participating votes.

Exchange Controls

Non-residents of Israel who purchase ADSs with U.S. dollars or other non-Israeli currency will be able to receive dividends, if any, and any amounts payable upon the dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs of Teva, in U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the time of conversion. Dividends to non-Israeli residents are subject to withholding.

DESCRIPTION OF AMERICAN DEPOSITARY SHARES

This section summarizes certain information regarding the American Depositary Shares ("ADSs") of Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (the "Company"), each of which represents one ordinary share of the Company. The following description is only a summary and does not purport to be complete and is qualified by reference to the Memorandum, the Articles, and our Second Amended and Restated Deposit Agreement, by and among the Company, Citibank, N.A., as depositary, and the holders and beneficial owners of ADSs issued thereunder, dated as of December 4, 2018 (the "Deposit Agreement"), each of which is incorporated by reference as exhibits hereto.

American Depositary Shares and Receipts

General

ADSs represent ownership interests in securities that are on deposit with the depositary bank. ADSs may be represented by certificates that are commonly known as "American Depositary Receipts" or "ADRs." The depositary bank typically appoints a custodian to safekeep the securities on deposit. Citibank N.A., having its principal office at 388 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10013, U.S.A., is acting as depositary bank for our ADSs and the custodians are Citibank Tel Aviv and Citibank, N.A.

The Company has appointed Citibank as depositary bank pursuant to the Deposit Agreement.

Each ADS represents the right to receive one ordinary share on deposit with the custodian. An ADS also represents the right to receive any other property received by the depositary bank or the custodian on behalf of the owner of the ADS but that has not been distributed to the owners of ADSs because of legal restrictions or practical considerations. The custodian, the depositary bank and their respective nominees will hold all deposited property for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of ADSs. The deposited property does not constitute the proprietary assets of the depositary bank, the custodian or their nominees. Beneficial ownership in the deposited property will under the terms of the Deposit Agreement be vested in the beneficial owners of the ADSs. The depositary bank, the custodian and their respective nominees will be the record holders of the deposited property represented by the ADSs for the benefit of the holders and beneficial owners of the corresponding ADSs. Owners of ADSs will be able to exercise beneficial ownership interests in the deposited property only through the registered holders of the ADSs, by the registered holders of the ADSs (on behalf of the applicable ADS owners) only through the depositary bank, and by the depositary bank (on behalf of the owners of the corresponding ADSs) directly, or indirectly through the custodian or their respective nominees, in each case upon the terms of the Deposit Agreement.

Owners of ADSs become a party to the Deposit Agreement and will be bound to its terms and to the terms of any ADR that represents ADSs. The Deposit Agreement and the ADR specify the rights and obligations of the Company, the depositary bank and the ADS owners. The Deposit Agreement and the ADRs are governed by New York law. However, the Company's obligations to the holders of ordinary shares will continue to be governed by the laws of the State of Israel, which may be different from the laws of the United States.

Owners of ADSs may hold ADSs either by means of an ADR registered in their name, through a brokerage or safekeeping account, or through an account established by the depositary bank in their name reflecting the registration of uncertificated ADSs directly on the books of the depositary bank (commonly referred to as the "direct registration system" or "DRS"). The direct registration system reflects the uncertificated (book-entry) registration of ownership of ADSs by the depositary bank. Under the direct registration system, ownership of ADSs is evidenced by periodic statements issued by the depositary bank to the holders of the ADSs. The direct registration system includes automated transfers between the depositary bank and The Depository Trust Company, or DTC, the central book-entry clearing and settlement system for equity securities in the United States.

Dividends and Distributions

Holders of ADSs generally have the right to receive distributions made by the Company on the securities deposited with the custodian. Receipt of these distributions may be limited, however, by practical considerations and legal limitations. Holders of ADSs will receive such distributions under the terms of the Deposit Agreement in proportion to the number of ADSs held as of a specified record date, after deduction of the applicable fees, taxes and expenses.

Distributions of Cash

Whenever the Company makes a cash distribution for the securities on deposit with the custodian, the Company will deposit the funds with the depositary bank or the custodian on behalf of the depositary bank. Upon receipt of confirmation of the deposit of the requisite funds, the depositary bank will arrange for the funds to be converted into U.S. dollars and for the distribution of the U.S. dollars to the holders, subject to the laws and regulations of the State of Israel.

The conversion into U.S. dollars will take place only if practicable and if the U.S. dollars are transferable to the United States. The depositary bank will apply the same method for distributing the proceeds of the sale of any property (such as undistributed rights) held by the custodian in respect of securities on deposit.

The distribution of cash will be made net of the fees, expenses, taxes and governmental charges payable by holders under the terms of the Deposit Agreement. The depositary bank will hold any cash amounts it is unable to distribute in a non-interest bearing account for the benefit of the applicable holders and beneficial owners of ADSs until the distribution can be effected or the funds that the depositary bank holds must be escheated as unclaimed property in accordance with the laws of the relevant states of the United States.

Distributions of Shares

Whenever the Company makes a free distribution of shares for the securities on deposit with the custodian, the Company will deposit the applicable number of shares with the custodian. Upon receipt of confirmation of such deposit, the depositary bank will either distribute to holders new ADSs representing the ordinary shares deposited or modify the ADS-to-shares ratio, in which case each ADS held by holders will represent rights and interests in the additional ordinary shares or preference shares so deposited. Only whole new ADSs will be distributed. Fractional entitlements will be sold and the proceeds of such sale will be distributed as in the case of a cash distribution.

The distribution of new ADSs or the modification of the ADS-to-ordinary shares ratio upon a distribution of ordinary shares or preference shares will be made net of the fees, expenses, taxes and governmental charges payable by holders under the terms of the Deposit Agreement. In order to pay such taxes or governmental charges, the depositary bank may sell all or a portion of the new ordinary shares so distributed. No such distribution of new ADSs will be made if it would violate a law (i.e., the U.S. securities laws) or if it is not operationally practicable. If the depositary bank does not distribute new ADSs as described above, it may sell the shares received upon the terms described in the Deposit Agreement and will distribute the proceeds of the sale as in the case of a distribution of cash.

Elective Distributions of Cash or Shares

Whenever the Company intends to distribute a dividend payable at the election of shareholders either in cash or in additional shares, it will give prior notice thereof to the depositary bank and will indicate whether it wishes the elective distribution to be made available to holders. In such case, the Company will assist the depositary bank in determining whether such distribution is lawful and reasonably practicable.

The depositary bank will make the election available to holders only if it is reasonably practicable and if the Company has provided all of the documentation contemplated in the Deposit Agreement. In such case, the depositary bank will establish procedures, in consultation with the Company, to enable holders to elect to receive either cash or additional ADSs, in each case as described in the Deposit Agreement.

If the election is not made available to holders, holders will receive either cash or additional ADSs, depending on what a shareholder under Israeli law would receive upon failing to make an election, as more fully described in the Deposit Agreement.

Distribution of Rights

Whenever the Company intends to distribute rights to purchase additional ordinary shares, it will give prior notice to the depositary bank and will assist the depositary bank in determining whether it is lawful and reasonably practicable to distribute rights to purchase additional ADSs to holders.

The depositary bank will establish procedures, in consultation with the Company, to distribute rights to purchase additional ADSs to holders and to enable such holders to exercise such rights if it is lawful and reasonably practicable to make the rights available to holders of ADSs, and if the Company provides all of the documentation contemplated in the Deposit Agreement (such as opinions to address the lawfulness of the transaction). Holders may have to pay fees, expenses, taxes and other governmental charges to subscribe for the new ADSs upon the exercise of their rights. The depositary bank is not obligated to establish procedures to facilitate the distribution and exercise by holders of rights to purchase new ordinary shares other than in the form of ADSs.

The depositary bank will *not* distribute the rights to holders if:

- the Company does not timely request that the rights be distributed to holders or the Company requests that the rights not be distributed to holders; or
- the Company fails to deliver satisfactory documents to the depositary bank; or
- it is not reasonably practicable to distribute the rights.

The depositary bank will sell the rights that are not exercised or not distributed if such sale is lawful and reasonably practicable. The proceeds of such sale will be distributed to holders as in the case of a cash distribution. If the depositary bank is unable to sell the rights, it will allow the rights to lapse.

Other Distributions

Whenever the Company intends to distribute property other than cash, ordinary shares or rights to purchase additional ordinary shares, it will notify the depositary bank in advance and will indicate whether it wishes that such distribution be made to holders of ADSs. If so, the Company will assist the depositary bank in determining whether such distribution to holders is lawful and reasonably practicable. If it is reasonably practicable to distribute such property to holders and if the Company provides all of the documentation contemplated in the Deposit Agreement, the depositary bank will distribute the property to the holders in a manner it, in consultation with the Company, deems practicable.

The distribution will be made net of fees, expenses, taxes and governmental charges payable by holders under the terms of the Deposit Agreement. In order to pay such taxes and governmental charges, the depositary bank may, in consultation with the Company, sell all or a portion of the property received.

The depositary bank will not distribute the property to holders and will sell the property if:

• the Company does not request that the property be distributed to holders or if the Company asks that the property not be distributed to holders; or

- the Company does not deliver satisfactory documents to the depositary bank; or
- the depositary bank determines, in consultation with the Company, that all or a portion of the distribution to holders is not reasonably practicable.

The proceeds of such a sale will be distributed to holders as in the case of a cash distribution.

Redemption

Whenever the Company intends to redeem any of the securities on deposit with the custodian, it will notify the depositary bank in advance. If it is practicable and if the Company provides all of the documentation contemplated in the Deposit Agreement, the depositary bank will provide notice of the redemption to the holders.

The custodian will be instructed to surrender the shares being redeemed against payment of the applicable redemption price. The depositary bank will convert the redemption funds received into U.S. dollars upon the terms of the Deposit Agreement and will establish procedures to enable holders to receive the net proceeds from the redemption upon surrender of their ADSs to the depositary bank. Holders may have to pay fees, expenses, taxes and other governmental charges upon the redemption of their ADSs. If less than all ADSs are being redeemed, the ADSs to be retired will be selected by lot or on a *pro rata* basis, as the depositary bank may determine in consultation with the Company.

Changes Affecting Ordinary Shares and Preference Shares

The ordinary shares held on deposit for ADSs may change from time to time. For example, there may be a change in nominal or par value, a split-up, cancellation, consolidation or reclassification of such ordinary shares or a recapitalization, reorganization, merger, consolidation or sale of assets.

If any such change were to occur, the ADSs would, to the extent permitted by law, represent the right to receive the property received or exchanged in respect of the new ordinary shares held on deposit. The depositary bank may in such circumstances deliver new ADSs to holders, amend the Deposit Agreement, the applicable ADRs and the applicable Registration Statement(s) on Form F-6, call for the exchange of existing ADSs for new ADSs and take any other actions that are appropriate to reflect as to the ADSs the change affecting the ordinary shares. If the depositary bank may not lawfully distribute such property to holders, the depositary bank may sell such property and distribute the net proceeds to holders as in the case of a cash distribution.

Issuance of ADSs upon Deposit of Ordinary Shares

Upon receipt of notice from the custodian confirming (i) that a deposit of ordinary shares has been made pursuant to the requirements of the Deposit Agreement, (ii) that all required documentation has been received, and (iii) the person(s) to whom ADSs are deliverable and the number of ADSs to be delivered, the depositary bank will issue, subject to the terms of the Deposit Agreement, applicable law and payment of all applicable charges, taxes and other governmental fees, ADSs to the persons named in the custodian's notice. The depositary bank will only issue ADSs in whole numbers.

When a holder makes a deposit of ordinary shares, such holder will be responsible for transferring good and valid title to the depositary bank. As such, holders will be deemed to represent and warrant that:

- the ordinary shares are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid, non-assessable and legally obtained;
- all preemptive (and similar) rights, if any, with respect to such ordinary shares have been validly waived or exercised;
- the person making the deposit is duly authorized to deposit the ordinary shares;

- the ordinary shares presented for deposit are free and clear of any lien, encumbrance, security interest, charge, mortgage or adverse claim, and the ADSs issuable upon such deposit will not be "restricted securities" (as defined in the Deposit Agreement); and
- the ordinary shares presented for deposit have not been stripped of any rights or entitlements.

If any of the representations or warranties are incorrect in any way, the Company and the depositary bank may, at holders' cost and expense, take any and all actions necessary to correct the consequences of the misrepresentations.

Transfer, Combination and Split of ADRs

Holders are entitled to transfer, combine or split up their ADRs and the ADSs evidenced thereby. For transfers of ADRs, holders will have to surrender the ADRs to be transferred to the depositary bank and also:

- ensure that the surrendered ADR is properly endorsed or otherwise in proper form for transfer;
- provide such proof of identity and genuineness of signatures as the depositary bank deems appropriate;
- provide any transfer stamps required by the State of New York or the United States; and
- pay all applicable fees, charges, expenses, taxes and other government charges payable by ADR holders pursuant to the terms of the Deposit Agreement, upon the transfer of ADRs.

To have ADRs either combined or split up, holders must surrender the ADRs in question to the depositary bank with a request to have them combined or split up, and holders must pay all applicable fees, charges and expenses payable by ADR holders, pursuant to the terms of the Deposit Agreement, upon a combination or split up of ADRs.

Withdrawal of Ordinary Shares upon Cancellation of ADSs

Holders of ADSs are entitled to present their ADSs to the depositary bank for cancellation and then receive the corresponding number of underlying ordinary shares at the custodian's offices. Holders' ability to withdraw the ordinary shares may be limited by U.S. and Israeli legal considerations applicable at the time of withdrawal. In order to withdraw the ordinary shares represented by ADSs, holders will be required to pay to the depositary bank the fees for cancellation of ADSs and any charges and taxes payable upon the transfer of the ordinary shares being withdrawn. Holders assume the risk for delivery of all funds and securities upon withdrawal. Once canceled, the ADSs will not have any rights under the Deposit Agreement.

If holders hold ADSs registered in their name, the depositary bank may ask such holders to provide proof of identity and genuineness of any signature and such other documents as the depositary bank may deem appropriate before it will cancel the ADSs. The withdrawal of the ordinary shares represented by the ADSs may be delayed until the depositary bank receives satisfactory evidence of compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. The depositary bank will only accept ADSs for cancellation that represent a whole number of securities on deposit.

Holders have the right to withdraw the securities represented by ADSs at any time except for:

- temporary delays that may arise because (i) the transfer books for the ordinary shares or ADSs are
 closed, or (ii) ordinary shares are immobilized on account of a shareholders' meeting or a payment of
 dividends;
- outstanding obligations to pay fees, taxes and similar charges; or
- restrictions imposed because of laws or regulations applicable to ADSs or the withdrawal of securities on deposit.

The Deposit Agreement may not be modified to impair holders' right to withdraw the securities represented by their ADSs, except to comply with mandatory provisions of law.

Reports and Communications

The Company will furnish to the depositary bank all notices of shareholders' meetings, proxy soliciting material and other reports and communications that are made generally available to the holders of ordinary shares and English translations of the same (including a summary, in English, of any applicable provisions or proposed provisions of the Articles that may be relevant to such notices, reports and communications). The depositary bank will make such notices, reports and communications available for inspection by holders of ADSs at its principal office when furnished by the Company pursuant to the Deposit Agreement and, upon request by the Company, will mail such notices, reports and communications to holders at the Company's expense.

Voting Rights

Holders of ADSs generally have the right under the Deposit Agreement to instruct the depositary bank to exercise the voting rights for the ordinary shares represented by their ADSs.

At the Company's request, the depositary bank will distribute to holders any notice of shareholders' meeting received from the Company together with information explaining how to instruct the depositary bank to exercise the voting rights of the securities represented by ADSs.

If the depositary bank timely receives voting instructions from a holder of ADSs, it will endeavor to vote the securities (in person or by proxy) represented by the holder's ADSs in accordance with such voting instructions.

The ability of the depositary bank to carry out voting instructions may be limited by practical and legal limitations and the terms of the securities on deposit. The Company cannot assure that holders will receive voting materials in time to enable them to return voting instructions to the depositary bank in a timely manner. Securities for which no voting instructions have been received will not be voted.

Fees and Charges

Holders of ADSs will be required to pay the following service fees to the depositary bank:

| Service | Fees |
|---|--|
| (1) Issuance of ADSs (e.g., an issuance upon a degree of shares, upon a change in the ADS(s)-to-share(s or for any other reason), excluding issuances as a of distributions described in paragraph (4) below. |) ratio, issued. result |
| (2) Cancellation of ADSs (e.g., a cancellation of A for delivery of deposited shares, upon a change in the ADS(s)-to-share(s) ratio, or for any other reasonable. | cancelled. |
| (3) Distribution of cash dividends or other cash distributions (e.g., upon a sale of rights and other entitlements). | Up to U.S. \$5.00 per 100 ADSs (or fraction thereof) held. |
| (4) Distribution of ADSs pursuant to (i) stock divisor other free stock distributions, or (ii) exercise of to purchase additional ADSs. | |
| (5) Distribution of securities other than ADSs or r to purchase additional ADSs (e.g., spin-off shares | |
| (6) ADS Services. | Up to U.S. \$5.00 per 100 ADSs (or fraction thereof) held on the applicable record date(s) established by the depositary bank. |

Holders of ADSs will also be responsible to pay certain fees and expenses incurred by the depositary bank and certain taxes and governmental charges such as:

- (1) taxes and other governmental charges;
- (2) fees related to the transfer and registration of ordinary shares charged by the registrar and transfer agent (i.e., upon deposit and withdrawal of ordinary shares);
- (3) expenses for cable, telex and fax transmissions and for delivery of securities;
- (4) expenses incurred for converting foreign currency into U.S. dollars;
- (5) expenses incurred in connection with compliance with exchange control regulations and other regulatory requirements; and
- (6) fees and expenses incurred in connection with the delivery or servicing of ordinary shares on deposit.

Depositary fees payable upon the issuance and cancellation of ADSs are typically paid to the depositary bank by the brokers (on behalf of their clients) receiving the newly issued ADSs from the depositary bank and by the brokers (on behalf of their clients) delivering the ADSs to the depositary bank for cancellation. The brokers in turn charge these fees to their clients. Depositary fees payable in connection with distributions of cash or securities to holders and the depositary services fee are charged by the depositary bank to the holders of record of ADSs as of the applicable ADS record date.

The Depositary fees payable for cash distributions are generally deducted from the cash being distributed. In the case of distributions other than cash (*i.e.*, stock dividend, rights), the depositary bank charges the applicable fee to the ADS record date holders concurrent with the distribution. In the case of ADSs registered in the name of the investor (whether certificated or uncertificated in direct registration), the depositary bank sends invoices to the applicable record date ADS holders. In the case of ADSs held in brokerage and custodian accounts (via DTC), the depositary bank generally collects its fees through the systems provided by DTC (whose nominee is the registered holder of the ADSs held in DTC) from the brokers and custodians holding ADSs in their DTC accounts. The brokers and custodians who hold their clients' ADSs in DTC accounts in turn charge their clients' accounts the amount of the fees paid to the depositary banks.

In the event of refusal to pay the depositary fees, the depositary bank may, under the terms of the Deposit Agreement, refuse the requested service until payment is received or may set off the amount of the depositary fees from any distribution to be made to the holder.

The fees and charges holders may be required to pay may vary over time and may be changed by the Company and by the depositary bank. Holders will receive prior notice of such changes.

The depositary bank may reimburse the Company for certain expenses incurred by the Company in respect of the ADR program established pursuant to the Deposit Agreement, by making available a portion of the depositary fees charged in respect of the ADR program or otherwise, upon such terms and conditions as the Company and the depositary bank may agree from time to time.

Amendment and Termination

The Company may agree with the depositary bank to modify the Deposit Agreement at any time without holders' consent. The Company undertakes to give holders 30 days' prior notice of any modifications that would materially prejudice any of their substantial rights under the Deposit Agreement. Modifications to the Deposit Agreement shall be deemed not to materially prejudice holders' substantial existing rights if such modifications are reasonably necessary for the ADSs to be registered under the Securities Act or to be eligible for book-entry settlement, in each case without imposing or increasing the fees and charges holders are required to pay. In addition, the Company may not be able to provide holders with prior notice of any modifications or supplements that are required to accommodate compliance with applicable provisions of law.

Holders will be bound by the modifications to the Deposit Agreement if they continue to hold ADSs after the modifications to the Deposit Agreement become effective. The Deposit Agreement cannot be amended to prevent holders from withdrawing the ordinary shares represented by their ADSs (except in order to comply with applicable by law).

The Company has the right to direct the depositary bank to terminate the Deposit Agreement. Similarly, the depositary bank may in certain circumstances on its own initiative terminate the Deposit Agreement. In either case, the depositary bank must give notice to holders at least 30 days before termination. Until termination, holders' rights under the Deposit Agreement will be unaffected.

After termination, the depositary bank will continue to collect distributions received (but will not distribute any such property until holders request the cancellation of their ADSs) and may sell the securities held on deposit. After the sale, the depositary bank will hold the proceeds from such sale and any other funds then held for holders in a non-interest bearing account. At that point, the depositary bank will have no further obligations to holders other than to account for the funds then held for holders still outstanding (after deduction of applicable fees, taxes and expenses).

Book of Depositary

The depositary bank will maintain ADS holder records at its depositary office. Holders may inspect such records at such office during regular business hours but solely for the purpose of communicating with other holders in the interest of business matters relating to the ADSs and the Deposit Agreement.

The depositary bank will maintain in New York City (Borough of Manhattan) facilities to record and process the issuance, cancellation, combination, split-up and transfer of ADSs. These facilities may be closed from time to time, to the extent not prohibited by law.

Limitations on Obligations and Liabilities

The Deposit Agreement limits the obligations of the Company and the depositary bank to the holders of ADSs as follows:

- the Company and the depositary bank are obligated only to take the actions specifically stated in the Deposit Agreement without negligence or bad faith;
- both the Company and the depositary bank disclaim any liability for any failure to carry out voting instructions, for any manner in which a vote is cast or for the effect of any vote, provided they act in good faith and in accordance with the terms of the Deposit Agreement;
- both the Company and the depositary bank disclaim any liability for any failure to accurately determine the lawfulness or practicality of any action, for the investment risks associated with investing in ordinary shares, for the validity or worth of the ordinary shares, for the value of ordinary shares or any distribution or interest thereon, for any tax consequences that result from the ownership of ADSs, for the credit-worthiness of any third party, for allowing any rights to lapse under the terms of the Deposit Agreement; for any action of or failure to act by, or any information provided or not provided by, DTC or any DTC participant;
- the depositary bank disclaims any liability for the content of any information submitted to it by the Company for distribution to holders or for any inaccuracy of any translation thereof or for the failure or timeliness of any notice from the Company;
- the Company and the depositary bank will not be obligated to perform any act that is inconsistent with the terms of the Deposit Agreement;
- the Company and the depositary bank disclaim any liability if the Company or the custodian or the depositary bank are prevented or forbidden from or subject to any civil or criminal penalty or restraint

on account of, or delayed in, doing or performing any act or thing required by the terms of the Deposit Agreement, by reason of any provision, present or future of any applicable law or regulation, or by reason of present or future provision of any provision of our Articles, or any provision of or governing the securities on deposit, or by reason of any act of God or war or other circumstances beyond the Company's control;

- the Company and the depositary bank disclaim any liability by reason of any exercise of, or failure to
 exercise, any discretion provided for in the Deposit Agreement or in the Articles or in any provisions of
 or governing the securities on deposit;
- the Company and the depositary bank further disclaim any liability for any action or inaction in
 reliance on the advice or information received from legal counsel, accountants, any person presenting
 ordinary shares for deposit, any holder of ADSs or authorized representatives thereof, or any other
 person believed by the Company or the depositary bank in good faith to be competent to give such
 advice or information;
- the Company and the depositary bank also disclaim liability for the inability of certain holders to benefit from any distribution, offering, right or other benefit that is made available to holders of ordinary shares but is not, under the terms of the Deposit Agreement, made available to such holders;
- the Company and the depositary bank also disclaim liability for any action or inaction of any clearing or settlement system (and any participant thereof) for the deposited property or the ADSs;
- the Company and the depositary bank may rely without any liability upon any written notice, request or other document believed to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper parties; and
- the Company and the depositary bank also disclaim liability for any consequential or punitive damages for any breach of the terms of the Deposit Agreement.

Taxes

Holders will be responsible for the taxes and other governmental charges payable on the ADSs and the securities represented by the ADSs. The Company, the depositary bank and the custodian may deduct from any distribution the taxes and governmental charges payable by holders and may sell any and all property on deposit to pay the taxes and governmental charges payable by holders. Holders will be liable for any deficiency if the sale proceeds do not cover the taxes that are due.

The depositary bank may refuse to issue ADSs, to deliver, transfer, split and combine ADRs or to release securities on deposit until all taxes and charges are paid by the applicable holder. The depositary bank and the custodian may take reasonable administrative actions to obtain tax refunds and reduced tax withholding for any distributions on behalf of holders. However, holders may be required to provide to the depositary bank and to the custodian proof of taxpayer status and residence and such other information as the Company, the depositary bank and the custodian may require to fulfill legal obligations. Holders are required to indemnify the Company, the depositary bank and the custodian for any claims with respect to taxes based on any tax benefit obtained for holders.

Foreign Currency Conversion

The depositary bank will arrange for the conversion of all foreign currency received into U.S. dollars if such conversion is practical, and it will distribute the U.S. dollars in accordance with the terms of the Deposit Agreement. Holders may have to pay fees and expenses incurred in converting foreign currency, such as fees and expenses incurred in complying with currency exchange controls and other governmental requirements.

If the conversion of foreign currency is not practical or lawful, or if any required approvals are denied or not obtainable at a reasonable cost or within a reasonable period, the depositary bank may take the following actions in its discretion:

- convert the foreign currency to the extent practical and lawful and distribute the U.S. dollars to holders for whom the conversion and distribution is lawful and practical; or
- distribute the foreign currency to holders for whom the distribution is lawful and practical; or
- hold the foreign currency (without liability for interest) for the applicable holders.

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES AND GUARANTEES

We or any of the other finance subsidiaries may elect to offer debt securities. The following description of debt securities sets forth the material terms and provisions of the debt securities to which any prospectus supplement may relate. Our senior debt securities would be issued under a senior indenture between Teva and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee. Teva's subordinated debt securities would be issued under a subordinated indenture between Teva and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.

The senior debt securities of each finance subsidiary would be issued under a senior indenture among that entity, Teva, as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee. The subordinated debt securities of each finance subsidiary would be issued under a subordinated indenture among that entity, Teva, as guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.

All of the indentures are sometimes referred to in this prospectus collectively as the "indentures" and each, individually, as an "indenture." All senior indentures are sometimes referred to in this prospectus collectively as the "senior indentures" and each, individually, as a "senior indenture." All subordinated indentures are sometimes referred to in this prospectus collectively as the "subordinated indentures" and each, individually, as a "subordinated indenture." The particular terms of the debt securities offered by any prospectus supplement, and the extent to which the general provisions described below may apply to the offered debt securities, will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. The indentures will be qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended. The terms of the debt securities will include those stated in the indentures and those made part of the indentures by reference to the Trust Indenture Act.

Because the following summaries of the material terms and provisions of the indentures and the related debt securities are not complete, you should refer to the forms of the indentures and the debt securities for complete information on some of the terms and provisions of the indentures, including definitions of some of the terms used below, and the debt securities. The senior indentures and subordinated indentures are substantially identical to one another, except for specific provisions relating to subordination contained in the subordinated indentures.

General

The provisions of the indentures do not limit the aggregate principal amount of debt securities which may be issued thereunder. Unless otherwise provided in a prospectus supplement, the senior debt securities will be the issuer's direct, unsecured and unsubordinated general obligations and will have the same rank in liquidation as all of the issuer's other unsecured and unsubordinated debt. The subordinated debt securities will be unsecured obligations of the issuer, subordinated in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior indebtedness of the issuer with respect to such series, as described below under "Subordination of the Subordinated Debt Securities" and in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Payments

The issuer may issue debt securities from time to time in one or more series. The provisions of the indentures allow the issuer to "reopen" a previous issue of a series of debt securities and issue additional debt securities of that series, as well as debt securities of other series. The debt securities may be denominated and payable in U.S. dollars or foreign currencies. The issuer may also issue debt securities from time to time with the principal amount or interest payable on any relevant payment date to be determined by reference to one or more currency exchange rates, securities or baskets of securities, commodity prices or indices. Holders of these types of debt securities will receive payments of principal or interest that depend upon the value of the applicable currency, security or basket of securities, commodity or index on the relevant payment dates.

Debt securities may bear interest at a fixed rate, which may be zero, a floating rate, or a rate which varies during the lifetime of the debt security. Debt securities bearing no interest or interest at a rate that at the time of issuance is below the prevailing market rate may be sold at a discount below their stated principal amount.

Terms Specified in the Applicable Prospectus Supplement

The applicable prospectus supplement will contain, where applicable, the following terms of and other information relating to any offered debt securities:

- the specific designation;
- any limit on the aggregate principal amount of the debt securities, their purchase price and denomination;
- the currency in which the debt securities are denominated and/or in which principal, premium, if any, and/or interest, if any, is payable;
- the date of maturity;
- the interest rate or rates or the method by which the calculation agent will determine the interest rate or rates, if any;
- the interest payment dates, if any;
- the place or places for payment of the principal of and any premium and/or interest on the debt securities:
- any repayment, redemption, prepayment or sinking fund provisions, including any redemption notice provisions;
- whether we will issue the debt securities in definitive form and under what terms and conditions:
- the terms on which holders of the debt securities may convert or exchange these securities into or for ADSs or other of our securities or of an entity unaffiliated with us, any specific terms relating to the adjustment of the conversion or exchange feature and the period during which the holders may make the conversion or exchange;
- information as to the methods for determining the amount of principal or interest payable on any date and/or the currencies, securities or baskets of securities, commodities or indices to which the amount payable on that date is linked;
- any agents for the debt securities, including trustees, depositaries, authenticating or paying agents, transfer agents or registrars;
- whether and under what circumstances the issuer will pay additional amounts on debt securities for any tax, assessment or governmental charge withheld or deducted and, if so, whether we will have the option to redeem those debt securities rather than pay the additional amounts;
- any material Israeli, U.S. federal and, if applicable, Dutch income tax consequences, including, but not limited to:
 - tax considerations applicable to any discounted debt securities or to debt securities issued at par that are treated as having been issued at a discount for United States federal income tax purposes; and
 - tax considerations applicable to any debt securities denominated and payable in foreign currencies;
- whether certain payments on the debt securities will be guaranteed under a financial insurance guaranty policy and the terms of that guaranty;
- whether the debt securities will be secured;
- any applicable selling restrictions;
- whether the issued debt securities are a green bond, social bond, sustainability bond or sustainabilitylinked bond; and
- any other specific terms of the debt securities, including any modifications to or additional events of default, covenants or modified or eliminated acceleration rights, and any terms required by or advisable

under applicable laws or regulations, including laws and regulations relating attributes required for the debt securities to be afforded certain capital treatment for bank regulatory or other purposes.

Some of the debt securities may be issued as original issue discount securities. Original issue discount securities bear no interest or bear interest at below-market rates and may be sold at a discount below their stated principal amount. The applicable prospectus supplement will contain information relating to income tax, accounting, and other special considerations applicable to original issue discount securities.

Registration and Transfer of Debt Securities

Holders may present debt securities for exchange, and holders of registered debt securities may present these securities for transfer, in the manner, at the places and subject to the restrictions stated in the debt securities and described in the applicable prospectus supplement. The issuer will provide these services without charge except for any tax or other governmental charge payable in connection with these services and subject to any limitations or requirements provided in the applicable indenture or the supplemental indenture or issuer order under which that series of debt securities is issued. If any of the securities are held in global form, the procedures for transfer of interests in those securities will depend upon the procedures of the depositary for those global securities.

Events of Default

Each indenture provides holders of debt securities with remedies if the issuer and/or guarantor, as the case may be, fails to perform specific obligations, such as making payments on the debt securities, or if the issuer and/or guarantor, as the case may be, becomes bankrupt. Holders should review these provisions and understand which actions trigger an event of default and which actions do not. Each indenture permits the issuance of debt securities in one or more series, and, in many cases, whether an event of default has occurred is determined on a series-by-series basis.

An event of default is defined under the indentures, with respect to any series of debt securities issued under that indenture, as any one or more of the following events, subject to modification in a supplemental indenture, each of which we refer to in this prospectus as an event of default, having occurred and be continuing:

- default is made in the payment of principal in respect of the securities;
- default is made for more than 30 days in the payment of interest in respect of the securities;
- the issuer and/or guarantor, as the case may be, fails to perform any of its other obligations under the
 securities and this failure has continued for the period of 90 days following service of notice on the
 issuer and/or guarantor requiring the same to be remedied;
- issuer's and/or guarantor's, as the case may be, bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or insolvency related reorganization law;
- an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the winding up or liquidation of the issuer and/ or guarantor, as the case may be; or
- any other event of default provided in the supplemental indenture or issuer order, if any, under which
 that series of debt securities is issued.

Acceleration of Debt Securities Upon an Event of Default

Each indenture provides that, unless otherwise set forth in a supplemental indenture:

• if an event of default occurs due to the default in payment of principal of, or any premium or interest on, any series of debt securities issued under the indenture, or due to the default in the performance or

breach of any other covenant or warranty of the issuer and/or guarantor, as the case may be, applicable to that series of debt securities but not applicable to all outstanding debt securities issued under that indenture occurs and is continuing, either the trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of each affected series, voting as one class, by notice in writing to the issuer and guarantor, as the case may be, may declare the principal of and accrued interest on the debt securities of such affected series (but not any other debt securities issued under that indenture) to be due and payable immediately;

- if an event of default occurs due to specified events of bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization of the issuer and/or the guarantor, as the case may be, the principal of all debt securities and interest accrued on the debt securities to be due and payable immediately; and
- if an event of default due to a default in the performance of any other of the covenants or agreements in the indenture applicable to all outstanding debt securities issued under the indenture occurs and is continuing, either the trustee or the holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of all outstanding debt securities issued under the indenture for which any applicable supplemental indenture does not prevent acceleration under the relevant circumstances, voting as one class, by notice in writing to the issuer and/or guarantor, as the case may be, may declare the principal of all debt securities and interest accrued on the debt securities to be due and payable immediately.

Annulment of Acceleration and Waiver of Defaults

In some circumstances, if any and all events of default under the indenture, other than the non-payment of the principal of the securities that has become due as a result of an acceleration, have been cured, waived or otherwise remedied, then the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all series of outstanding debt securities affected, voting as one class, may annul past declarations of acceleration or waive past defaults of the debt securities.

Indemnification of Trustee for Actions Taken on Your Behalf

Each indenture provides that the trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted to be taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the holders of debt securities issued under that indenture relating to the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred upon the trustee. In addition, each indenture contains a provision entitling the trustee, subject to the duty of the trustee to act with the required standard of care during a default, to be indemnified to its reasonable satisfaction by the holders of debt securities issued under the indenture before proceeding to exercise any right or power at the request of holders. Subject to these provisions and specified other limitations, the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of each series of outstanding debt securities of each affected series, voting as one class, may direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred on the trustee.

Limitation on Actions by You as an Individual Holder

Each indenture provides that no individual holder of debt securities may institute any action against us under that indenture, except actions for payment of overdue principal and interest, unless the following actions have occurred:

- the holder must have previously given written notice to the trustee of the continuing default;
- the holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of each affected series, treated as one class, must have:
 - requested the trustee to institute that action; and
 - offered the trustee reasonable indemnity;

- the trustee must have not instituted that action within 60 days after receipt of the request referred to above; and
- the holders of a majority in principal amount of the outstanding debt securities of each affected series, voting as one class, must not have given directions to the trustee inconsistent with those of the holders referred to above.

Each indenture contains a covenant that the issuer and guarantor, if applicable, will file annually with the trustee a certificate of no default or a certificate specifying any default that exists.

Discharge, Defeasance and Covenant Defeasance

The issuer has the ability to eliminate most or all of its obligations on any series of debt securities prior to maturity if it complies with the following provisions:

Discharge of Indenture. The issuer may discharge all of its obligations, other than as to transfers and exchanges, under the indenture after it has:

- paid or caused to be paid the principal of and interest on all of the outstanding debt securities in accordance with their terms;
- · delivered to the applicable trustee for cancellation all of the outstanding debt securities; or
- irrevocably deposited with the applicable trustee cash or, in the case of a series of debt securities payable only in U.S. dollars, U.S. government obligations in trust for the benefit of the holders of any series of debt securities issued under the indenture that have either become due and payable, or are by their terms due and payable, or are scheduled for redemption, within one year, in an amount certified to be sufficient to pay on each date that they become due and payable, the principal of and interest on, and any mandatory sinking fund payments for, those debt securities. However, the deposit of cash or U.S. government obligations for the benefit of holders of a series of debt securities that are due and payable, or are scheduled for redemption, within one year will discharge obligations under the applicable indenture relating only to that series of debt securities.

Defeasance of a Series of Securities at Any Time. The issuer may also discharge all of its obligations, other than as to transfers and exchanges, under any series of debt securities at any time, which we refer to as defeasance in this prospectus. The issuer may be released with respect to any outstanding series of debt securities from the obligations imposed by the covenants described above limiting consolidations, mergers, asset sales and leases, and elect not to comply with those sections without creating an event of default. Discharge under those procedures is called covenant defeasance.

Defeasance or covenant defeasance may be effected only if, among other things:

- the issuer irrevocably deposits with the relevant trustee cash or, in the case of debt securities payable only in U.S. dollars, U.S. government obligations, as trust funds in an amount certified to be sufficient to pay on each date that they become due and payable, the principal of and interest on, and any mandatory sinking fund payments for, all outstanding debt securities of the series being defeased; and
- the issuer delivers to the relevant trustee an opinion of counsel to the effect that:
 - the holders of the series of debt securities being defeased will not recognize income, gain or loss for United States federal income tax purposes as a result of the defeasance or covenant defeasance;
 - the defeasance or covenant defeasance will not otherwise alter those holders' United States federal
 income tax treatment of principal and interest payments on the series of debt securities being
 defeased; and

• in the case of a defeasance, this opinion must be based on a ruling of the Internal Revenue Service or a change in United States federal income tax law occurring after the date of this prospectus, since that result would not occur under current tax law.

Modification of the Indenture

Modification without Consent of Holders. The issuer and the relevant trustee may enter into supplemental indentures without the consent of the holders of debt securities issued under each indenture to:

- secure any debt securities or to confirm and evidence the release of security when such release is permitted under such indenture;
- evidence the assumption by a successor corporation of our obligations;
- add covenants for the protection of the holders of debt securities;
- delete or modify any Events of Default with respect to a new series being established;
- add or change any provisions of such indenture regarding restrictions on the payment of principal or premium if such modification does not adversely affect holders of such debt securities in any material respect;
- change or eliminate any provisions of such indenture if such change or elimination becomes effective when no securities affected are outstanding;
- cure any ambiguity, omission, mistake, defect or error or correct any inconsistency; or to surrender any right or power of an issuer or guarantors; or to make such other provisions that shall not adversely affect the interests of the holders in any material respect;
- establish the forms or terms of debt securities of any series or to authorize the issuance of additional securities of a series:
- evidence the assumption by the guarantor of all obligations and release of issuer;
- evidence the acceptance of appointment by a successor trustee;
- supplement such indenture to permit defeasance;
- add, change or eliminate provisions of such indenture to qualify under the Trust Indenture Act;
- reduce the minimum denomination of any series;
- prohibit the authentication and delivery of additional series;
- add guarantors or co-obligors to a series or to release guarantors in accordance with such indenture;
- make such provisions as necessary to exchange securities pursuant to a registration rights or similar agreement;
- conform provisions of such indenture with respect to a series to the provisions of the applicable "Description of Notes"; or
- make any other change that does not adversely affect in any material respect the interests of holders of such securities.

Modification with Consent of Holders. Each issuer and the trustee, with the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of each affected series of outstanding debt securities, voting as one class, may add any provisions to, or change in any manner or eliminate any of the provisions of, the indenture or modify in any manner the rights of the holders of those debt securities. However, the issuer and the

trustee may not make any of the following changes to any outstanding debt security without the consent of each holder that would be affected by the change:

- extend the final maturity of the security;
- reduce the principal amount;
- reduce the rate or extend the time of payment of interest;
- reduce any amount payable on redemption;
- change the currency in which the principal, including any amount of original issue discount, premium, or interest on the security is payable;
- modify or amend the provisions for conversion of any currency into another currency;
- reduce the amount of any original issue discount security payable upon acceleration or provable in bankruptcy;
- alter the terms on which holders of the debt securities may convert or exchange debt securities for stock or other securities or for other property or the cash value of the property, other than in accordance with the antidilution provisions or other similar adjustment provisions included in the terms of the debt securities;
- impair the right of any holder to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment on any debt security when due; or
- reduce the percentage of debt securities the consent of whose holders is required for modification of the Indenture.

Form of Debt Security

Each debt security will be represented either by a certificate issued in definitive form to a particular investor or by one or more global securities representing the entire issuance of securities. Both certificated securities in definitive form and global securities may be issued in registered form, where the issuer's obligation runs to the holder of the security named on the face of the security.

Definitive securities name you or your nominee as the owner of the security and in order to transfer or exchange these securities or to receive payments other than interest or other interim payments, you or your nominee must physically deliver the securities to the trustee, registrar, paying agent or other agent, as applicable.

Global securities name a depositary or its nominee as the owner of the debt securities represented by these global securities. The depositary maintains a computerized system that will reflect each investor's beneficial ownership of the securities through an account maintained by the investor with its broker/dealer, bank, trust company or other representative, as we explain more fully below.

Global Securities

Registered Global Securities. The issuer may issue the debt securities in the form of one or more fully registered global securities that will be deposited with a depositary or its nominee identified in the applicable prospectus supplement and registered in the name of that depositary or nominee. In those cases, one or more registered global securities will be issued in a denomination or aggregate denominations equal to the portion of the aggregate principal or face amount of the securities to be represented by registered global securities. Unless and until it is exchanged in whole for securities in definitive registered form, a registered global security may not be transferred except as a whole by and among the depositary for the registered global security, the nominees of the depositary or any successors of the depositary or those nominees. If not described below, any specific terms of the depositary arrangement with respect to any securities to be represented by a registered global security will

be described in the prospectus supplement relating to those securities. We anticipate that the following provisions will apply to all depositary arrangements:

Ownership of beneficial interests in a registered global security will be limited to persons, called participants, that have accounts with the depositary or persons that may hold interests through participants. Upon the issuance of a registered global security, the depositary will credit, on its book-entry registration and transfer system, the participants' accounts with the respective principal or face amounts of the securities beneficially owned by the participants. Any dealers, underwriters or selling agents participating in the distribution of the securities will designate the accounts to be credited. Ownership of beneficial interests in a registered global security will be shown on, and the transfer of ownership interests will be effected only through, records maintained by the depositary, with respect to interests of participants, and on the records of participants, with respect to interests of persons holding through participants. The laws of some states may require that some purchasers of securities take physical delivery of these securities in definitive form. These laws may impair your ability to own, transfer or pledge beneficial interests in registered global securities. So long as the depositary, or its nominee, is the registered owner of a registered global security, that depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, will be considered the sole owner or holder of the securities represented by the registered global security for all purposes under the applicable indenture.

Except as described below, owners of beneficial interests in a registered global security will not be entitled to have the securities represented by the registered global security registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to receive physical delivery of the securities in definitive form and will not be considered the owners or holders of the securities under the applicable indenture. Accordingly, each person owning a beneficial interest in a registered global security must rely on the procedures of the depositary for that registered global security and, if that person is not a participant, on the procedures of the participant through which the person owns its interest, to exercise any rights of a holder under the applicable indenture. We understand that under existing industry practices, if we request any action of holders or if an owner of a beneficial interest in a registered global security desires to give or take any action that a holder is entitled to give or take under the applicable indenture, the depositary for the registered global security would authorize the participants holding the relevant beneficial interests to give or take that action, and the participants would authorize beneficial owners owning through them to give or take that action or would otherwise act upon the instructions of beneficial owners holding through them.

Principal, premium, if any, and interest payments on debt securities represented by a registered global security registered in the name of a depositary or its nominee will be made to the depositary or its nominee, as the case may be, as the registered owner of the registered global security. None of the issuer, the guarantor, if applicable, the trustee or any other agent of the issuer, guarantor or agent of the trustee will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the registered global security or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to those beneficial ownership interests. We expect that the depositary for any of the securities represented by a registered global security, upon receipt of any payment of principal, premium, interest or other distribution of underlying securities or other property to holders on that registered global security, will immediately credit participants' accounts in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in that registered global security as shown on the records of the depositary. We also expect that payments by participants to owners of beneficial interests in a registered global security held through participants will be governed by standing customer instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with the securities held for the accounts of customers registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of those participants.

If the depositary for any of these securities represented by a registered global security is at any time unwilling or unable to continue as depositary or ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act, and a successor depositary registered as a clearing agency under the Exchange Act is not appointed by the issuer within 90 days, the issuer will issue securities in definitive form in exchange for the registered global security that had been held by the depositary. In addition, the issuer may, at any time and in its sole discretion,

decide not to have any of the securities represented by one or more registered global securities. If the issuer makes that decision, it will issue securities in definitive form in exchange for all of the registered global security or securities representing those securities. Any securities issued in definitive form in exchange for a registered global security will be registered in the name or names that the depositary gives to the relevant trustee or other relevant agent of ours or theirs. It is expected that the depositary's instructions will be based upon directions received by the depositary from participants with respect to ownership of beneficial interests in the registered global security that had been held by the depositary.

Guarantees

Teva will fully and unconditionally guarantee payment in full to the holders of the debt securities issued by the finance subsidiaries pursuant to this prospectus. The guarantee is set forth in, and forms part of, the finance subsidiary indenture under which the debt securities will be issued. If, for any reason, the issuer does not make any required payment in respect of its debt securities when due, the guarantor will cause the payment to be made to or to the order of the trustee. The guarantee will be on a senior basis when the guaranteed debt securities are issued under the senior indenture, and on a subordinated basis to the extent the guaranteed debt securities are issued under the subordinated indenture. The extent to which the guarantee is subordinated to other indebtedness of the guarantor will be substantially the same as the extent to which the subordinated debt issued by the issuer is subordinated to the other indebtedness of the issuer as described below under "—Subordination of the Subordinated Debt Securities." The holder of the guaranteed security may sue the guarantor to enforce its rights under the guarantee without first suing any other person or entity.

Subordination of the Subordinated Debt Securities

Subordinated debt securities issued by an issuer will, to the extent set forth in the applicable subordinated indenture, be subordinate in right of payment to the prior payment in full of all senior indebtedness of the issuer, whether outstanding at the date of the subordinated indenture or incurred after that date. In the event of:

- any insolvency or bankruptcy case or proceeding, or any receivership, liquidation, reorganization or
 other similar case or proceeding in connection therewith, relative to the issuer or to its creditors, as
 such, or to its assets; or
- any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or other winding up of the issuer, whether or not involving insolvency or bankruptcy; or
- any assignment for the benefit of creditors or any other marshalling of assets and liabilities of the issuer, then the holders of senior indebtedness of the issuer will be entitled to receive payment in full of all amounts due or to become due on or in respect of all its senior indebtedness, or provision will be made for the payment in cash, before the holders of the subordinated debt securities of the issuer are entitled to receive or retain any payment on account of principal of, or any premium or interest on, or any additional amounts with respect to, the subordinated debt securities. The holders of senior indebtedness of the issuer will be entitled to receive, for application to the payment of the senior indebtedness, any payment or distribution of any kind or character, whether in cash, property or securities, including any payment or distribution which may be payable or deliverable by reason of the payment of any other indebtedness of the issuer being subordinated to the payment of its subordinated debt securities. This payment may be payable or deliverable in respect of its subordinated debt securities in any case, proceeding, dissolution, liquidation or other winding up event.

By reason of subordination, in the event of liquidation or insolvency of the issuer, holders of senior indebtedness of the issuer and holders of other obligations of the issuer that are not subordinated to its senior indebtedness may recover more ratably than the holders of subordinated debt securities of the issuer.

Subject to the payment in full of all senior indebtedness of the issuer, the rights of the holders of subordinated debt securities of the issuer will be subrogated to the rights of the holders of its senior indebtedness

to receive payments or distributions of cash, property or securities of the issuer applicable to its senior indebtedness until the principal of, any premium and interest on, and any additional amounts with respect to, its subordinated debt securities have been paid in full.

No payment of principal, including redemption and sinking fund payments, of, or any premium or interest on, or any additional amounts with respect to the subordinated debt securities of the issuer, or payments to acquire these securities, other than pursuant to their conversion, may be made:

- if any senior indebtedness of the issuer is not paid when due and any applicable grace period with respect to the default has ended and the default has not been cured or waived or ceased to exist; or
- if the maturity of any senior indebtedness of the issuer has been accelerated because of a default.

The subordinated indentures do not limit or prohibit the issuer from incurring additional senior indebtedness, which may include indebtedness that is senior to its subordinated debt securities, but subordinate to the issuer's other obligations.

The subordinated indentures provide that these subordination provisions, insofar as they relate to any particular issue of subordinated debt securities by the issuer, may be changed prior to the issuance. Any change would be described in the applicable prospectus supplement.

New York Law to Govern

The indentures and the debt securities will be governed by the laws of the State of New York.

Information Concerning the Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee under the indenture, has been appointed by us as paying agent, conversion agent, registrar and custodian with regard to the debt securities. The trustee or its affiliates may from time to time in the future provide banking and other services to us in the ordinary course of their business.

DESCRIPTION OF PURCHASE CONTRACTS

Teva may issue purchase contracts for the purchase or sale of debt or equity securities issued by Teva, a basket of such securities, an index or indices of such securities or any combination of the above as specified in the applicable prospectus supplement.

Each purchase contract will entitle the holder thereof to purchase or sell, and obligate us to sell or purchase, on specified dates, such securities at a specified purchase price, which may be based on a formula, all as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. The applicable prospectus supplement will also specify the methods by which the holders may purchase or sell such securities and any acceleration, cancellation or termination provisions or other provisions relating to the settlement of a purchase contract and any security arrangements or requirements with respect thereto. Alternatively, if provided in the applicable prospectus supplement, purchase contracts may require holders to satisfy their obligations thereunder when the purchase contracts are issued. Any purchase contracts we issue will be physically settled by delivery of our ordinary shares or other securities to which they relate. Teva's obligation to settle such pre-paid purchase contacts on the relevant settlement date may constitute indebtedness. Accordingly, pre-paid purchase contracts will be issued under either the senior indenture or the subordinated indenture.

DESCRIPTION OF UNITS

As specified in the applicable prospectus supplement, Teva may issue units consisting of one or more purchase contracts, debt securities, ordinary shares, ADSs or any combination of such securities. The applicable prospectus supplement will describe:

- the terms of the units and of the purchase contracts, debt securities, ordinary shares and/or ADSs
 comprising the units, including whether and under what circumstances the securities comprising the
 units may be traded separately;
- a description of the terms of any unit agreement governing the units; and
- a description of the provisions for the payment, settlement, transfer or exchange of the units.

TAXATION

The material Israeli, U.S. federal and, if applicable, Dutch income tax consequences relating to the purchase, ownership and disposition of any of the securities offered by this prospectus will be set forth in the prospectus supplement offering those securities.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell our securities in any one or more of the following ways from time to time:

- to or through underwriters;
- to or through dealers;
- · through agents; or
- directly to purchasers, including our affiliates.

The prospectus supplement with respect to any offering of our securities will set forth the terms of the offering, including:

- the name or names of any underwriters, dealers or agents;
- the purchase price of the securities and the proceeds to us from the sale;
- any underwriting discounts and commissions or agency fees and other items constituting underwriters' or agents' compensation; and
- · any delayed delivery arrangements.

The distribution of the securities may be effected from time to time in one or more transactions at a fixed price or prices, which may be changed, at market prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to the prevailing market prices or at negotiated prices.

If securities are sold by means of an underwritten offering, we will execute an underwriting agreement with an underwriter or underwriters, and the names of the specific managing underwriter or underwriters, as well as any other underwriters, and the terms of the transaction, including commissions, discounts and any other compensation of the underwriters and dealers, if any, will be set forth in the prospectus supplement which will be used by the underwriters to sell the securities. If underwriters are utilized in the sale of the securities, the securities will be acquired by the underwriters for their own account and may be resold from time to time in one or more transactions, including negotiated transactions, at fixed public offering prices or at varying prices determined by the underwriters at the time of sale.

The securities to be sold by us may be offered to the public either through underwriting syndicates represented by managing underwriters or directly by the managing underwriters. If any underwriter or underwriters are utilized in the sale of the securities, unless otherwise indicated in the prospectus supplement, the underwriting agreement will provide that the obligations of the underwriters are subject to conditions precedent and that the underwriters with respect to a sale of securities will be obligated to purchase all of those securities if they purchase any of those securities.

We may grant to the underwriters options to purchase additional securities to cover over-allotments, if any, at the public offering price with additional underwriting discounts or commissions. If we grant any over-allotment option, the terms of any over-allotment option will be set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to those securities.

If a dealer is utilized in the sales of securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered, we will sell those securities to the dealer as principal. The dealer may then resell those securities to the public at varying prices to be determined by the dealer at the time of resale. Any reselling dealer may be deemed to be an underwriter, as the term is defined in the Securities Act, of the securities so offered and sold. The name of the dealer and the terms of the transaction will be set forth in the related prospectus supplement.

Offers to purchase securities may be solicited by agents designated by us from time to time. Any agent involved in the offer or sale of the securities in respect of which this prospectus is delivered will be named, and

any commissions payable by us to the agent will be set forth, in the applicable prospectus supplement. Unless otherwise indicated in the prospectus supplement, any agent will be acting on a reasonable best efforts basis for the period of its appointment. Any agent may be deemed to be an underwriter, as that term is defined in the Securities Act, of the securities so offered and sold.

Offers to purchase securities may be solicited directly by us and the sale of those securities may be made by us directly to institutional investors or others, who may be deemed to be underwriters within the meaning of the Securities Act with respect to any resale of those securities. The terms of any sales of this type will be described in the related prospectus supplement.

Underwriters, dealers, agents and remarketing firms may be entitled under relevant agreements entered into with us to indemnification by us against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, that may arise from any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or any omission or alleged omission to state a material fact in this prospectus, any supplement or amendment hereto, or in the Registration Statement of which this prospectus forms a part, or to contribution with respect to payments which the agents, underwriters or dealers may be required to make.

If so indicated in the prospectus supplement, we will authorize underwriters or other persons acting as our agents to solicit offers by institutions to purchase securities from us pursuant to contracts providing for payments and delivery on a future date. Institutions with which contracts of this type may be made include commercial and savings banks, insurance companies, pension funds, investment companies, educational and charitable institutions and others, but in all cases those institutions must be approved by us. The obligations of any purchaser under any contract of this type will be subject to the condition that the purchase of the securities shall not at the time of delivery be prohibited under the laws of the jurisdiction to which the purchaser is subject. The underwriters and other persons acting as our agents will not have any responsibility in respect of the validity or performance of those contracts.

One or more firms, referred to as "remarketing firms," may also offer or sell the securities, if the prospectus supplement so indicates, in connection with a remarketing arrangement upon their purchase. Remarketing firms will act as principals for their own accounts or as agents for Teva or any of its subsidiaries. These remarketing firms will offer or sell the securities in accordance with a redemption or repayment pursuant to the terms of the securities. The prospectus supplement will identify any remarketing firm and the terms of its agreement, if any, with Teva or any of its subsidiaries and will describe the remarketing firm's compensation. Remarketing firms may be deemed to be underwriters in connection with the securities they remarket. Remarketing firms may be entitled under agreements that may be entered into with Teva or any of its subsidiaries to indemnification by Teva or any of its subsidiaries against certain civil liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, and may engage in transactions with or perform services for Teva or any of its subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business.

Disclosure in the prospectus supplement of our use of delayed delivery contracts will include the commission that underwriters and agents soliciting purchases of the securities under delayed contracts will be entitled to receive in addition to the date when we will demand payment and delivery of the securities under the delayed delivery contracts. These delayed delivery contracts will be subject only to the conditions that we describe in the prospectus supplement.

Any ADSs will be listed on the NYSE, but any other securities may or may not be listed on a national securities exchange. In connection with the offering of securities, persons participating in the offering, such as any underwriters, may purchase and sell securities in the open market. These transactions may include overallotment and stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover syndicate short positions created in connection with the offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of bids or purchases for the purpose of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the securities, and syndicate short positions involve the sale by underwriters of a greater number of securities than they are required to purchase from any issuer in the offering. Underwriters also

may impose a penalty bid, whereby selling concessions allowed to syndicate members or other broker-dealers in respect of the securities sold in the offering for their account may be reclaimed by the syndicate if the securities are repurchased by the syndicate in stabilizing or covering transactions. These activities may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the securities, which may be higher than the price that might prevail in the open market, and these activities, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

EXPERTS

The financial statements and management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting (which is included in the Report of Teva Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting) incorporated in this prospectus by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020 have been so incorporated in reliance on the report of Kesselman & Kesselman, Certified Public Accountants (Isr.), a member of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, an independent registered public accounting firm, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters with respect to United States and New York law with respect to the validity of certain of the offered securities will be passed upon for the issuers by Kirkland & Ellis LLP, New York, New York. Certain legal matters with respect to Israeli law with respect to the validity of certain of the offered securities will be passed upon for the issuers by Tulchinsky Marciano Cohen Levitski & Co., Israel. Certain legal matters with respect to Dutch law will be passed upon for the issuers by Van Doorne N.V., Netherlands. Any underwriters will be advised about other issues relating to any offering by their own counsel.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Available Information

This prospectus is part of a Registration Statement that we filed with the SEC. The Registration Statement, including the attached exhibits, contains additional relevant information about us. The rules and regulations of the SEC allow us to omit some of the information included in the Registration Statement from this prospectus. In addition, we file annual and quarterly reports and other information with the SEC.

The SEC maintains an Internet website at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxies, information statements and other material that are filed through the SEC's Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis and Retrieval (EDGAR) system and filed electronically with the SEC. We began filing through the EDGAR system on October 31, 2002.

Information about us is also available on our website at http://www.tevapharm.com. Such information on our website is not part of this prospectus.

Incorporation by Reference

The rules of the SEC allow us to incorporate by reference information into this prospectus. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus, and information that we file later with the SEC will automatically update and supersede this information.

The following documents filed with the SEC are incorporated into this prospectus by reference:

- (1) Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020;
- (2) Our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2021, for the period ended June 30, 2021 and for the period ended September 30, 2021; and
- (3) Our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 25, 2021, February 2, 2021, June 14, 2021, July 6, 2021, July 21, 2021 and August 27, 2021; and
- (4) Those portions of our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the SEC on April 21, 2021 that are incorporated by reference into our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020.

We also incorporate by reference into this prospectus all documents (other than current reports furnished under Items 2.02 or Item 7.01 of Form 8-K and exhibits filed on such form that are related to such items) that are filed by us with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act after the date of this prospectus until we sell all of the securities covered by this prospectus or the sale of securities by us pursuant to this prospectus is terminated.

Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this Registration Statement to the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus or in any other subsequently filed document which is incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference modifies or supersedes such statement. Any such statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Registration Statement.

You may also obtain copies of these documents free of charge through our website at http://www.tevapharm.com or by contacting us at our address or telephone number set forth below. Other than the documents incorporated by reference herein as specified above, the documents and other information on our website are not incorporated by reference herein.

Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited
Investor Relations
124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street
Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel
+972-3-914-8213

ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

Teva is organized under the laws of Israel and certain of Teva's directors and officers reside outside of the United States. As a result, service of process on them may be difficult to effect in the United States. Furthermore, a substantial portion of Teva's assets are located outside of the United States. Therefore, any judgment obtained in the United States against us or any of our directors and officers may not be collectible within the United States.

Subject to various time limitations, an Israeli court may declare a judgment rendered by a foreign court in a civil matter, including judgments awarding monetary or other damages in non civil matters, enforceable if it finds that:

- (1) the judgment was rendered by a court which was, according to the foreign country's law, competent to render it;
- (2) the judgment is no longer appealable;
- (3) the obligation in the judgment is enforceable according to the rules relating to the enforceability of judgments in Israel and the substance of the judgment is not contrary to public policy in Israel; and
- (4) the judgment can be executed in the state in which it was given.

A foreign judgment will not be declared enforceable by Israeli courts if it was given in a state, the laws of which do not provide for the enforcement of judgments of Israeli courts (subject to exceptional cases) or if its enforcement is likely to prejudice the sovereignty or security of Israel. An Israeli court also will not declare a foreign judgment enforceable if it is proven to the Israeli court that:

- (1) the judgment was obtained by fraud;
- (2) there was no due process;
- (3) the judgment was given by a court not competent to render it according to the laws of private international law in Israel;
- (4) the judgment conflicts with another judgment that was given in the same matter between the same parties and which is still valid; or
- (5) at the time the action was brought to the foreign court a claim in the same matter and between the same parties was pending before a court or tribunal in Israel.

Teva Finance Netherlands II, Teva Finance Netherlands III and Teva Finance Netherlands IV

Each of the Netherlands BVs is organized under the laws of the Netherlands, and its managing directors and supervisory directors reside outside the United States, and all or a significant portion of the assets of such person may be, and substantially all of the assets of each the Netherlands BVs are, located outside the United States. As a result, it may not be possible to effect service of process within the United States upon any of the Netherlands BVs or any such person or to enforce against any of the Netherlands BVs or any such person judgments obtained in United States courts predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States.

The United States and the Netherlands do not currently have a treaty providing for reciprocal recognition and enforcement of judgments in civil and commercial matters. Therefore, a final judgment for the payment of money rendered by any federal or state court in the United States based on civil liability, whether or not predicated solely upon the federal securities laws of the United States, would not be directly enforceable in the Netherlands.

If the party in whose favor such a final judgment is rendered brings a new suit in a competent court in the Netherlands, that party may submit to Dutch court the final judgment that has been rendered in the United States.

A Dutch court will generally grant the same judgment without re-litigation on the merits if:

- (1) that judgment results from legal proceedings compatible with Dutch notions of due process;
- (2) that judgment does not contravene public policy of the Netherlands; and
- (3) the jurisdiction of the relevant federal or state court in the United States has been based on internationally accepted principles of international civil law.

Subject to the foregoing and provided that service of process occurs in accordance with applicable treaties, investors should be able to enforce in the Netherlands final judgments in civil and commercial matters obtained from U.S. federal or state courts. However, it is doubtful whether a Dutch court would accept jurisdiction and impose civil liability in an original action commenced in the Netherlands and predicated solely upon U.S. securities laws.

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

American Depositary Shares, each representing one Ordinary Share, Debt Securities, Purchase Contracts and Units

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE IV, LLC
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE V, LLC
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE VI, LLC
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS II B.V.
TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS IV B.V.

Debt Securities, fully and unconditionally guaranteed by TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

PROSPECTUS

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. You should not assume that the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date of this prospectus. We are not making an offer of these securities in any state where the offer is not permitted.

The date of this prospectus is October 27, 2021.

PART II. INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

ITEM 14. OTHER EXPENSES OF ISSUANCE AND DISTRIBUTION

The following table sets forth all costs and expenses in connection with the offer and sale of the securities being registered.

| | Amount | - |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------------|
| SEC registration fee | \$ | * |
| Legal fees and expenses | | ** |
| FINRA filing fee | | ** |
| Accounting fees and expenses | | ** |
| Printing costs | | ** |
| Transfer agent and trustee fees | | ** |
| Miscellaneous expenses | | ** |
| Total | \$ | - ** - |

^{*} In accordance with Rules 456(b) and 457(r) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the "Securities Act"), we are deferring payment of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") registration fee for the securities offered by this registration statement.

ITEM 15. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

The Israeli Companies Law, 5759-1999 (the "Companies Law") provides that a company may not exempt or indemnify a director or an executive officer (each an "Officer"), or enter into an insurance contract, which would provide coverage for any liability incurred as a result of any of the following: (i) a breach by the Officer of his or her duty of loyalty unless, with respect to insurance coverage or indemnification, due to a breach of his or her duty of loyalty to the company committed in good faith and with reasonable grounds to believe that such act would not prejudice the interests of the company; (ii) a breach by the Officer of his or her duty of care to the company committed intentionally or recklessly; (iii) any act or omission done with the intent of unlawfully realizing personal gain; or (iv) a fine, monetary sanction, forfeit or penalty imposed upon an Officer. In addition, the Companies Law provides that Officers can only be exempted in advance with respect to liability for damages caused as a result of a breach of their duty of care to the company (but not for such breaches committed intentionally or recklessly, as noted above, or in connection with a distribution (as defined in the Companies Law)).

Teva's Articles of Association include provisions under which Officers of Teva are or may be insured, exempted or indemnified against liability which they may incur in their capacities as such, subject to the Companies Law. Articles 102 through 105 of Teva's Articles of Association provide as follows:

102. Subject to the provisions of applicable law, the Company shall be entitled to engage in a contract for insurance of the liability of any Officer of the Company, in whole or in part, in respect of any liability or expense imposed on an Officer or expended by him or her as a result of any action which was performed by said Officer in his or her capacity as an Officer of the Company for which insurance

^{**} Estimated expenses are not presently known. The foregoing sets forth the general categories of expenses (other than underwriting discounts and commissions) that we anticipate we will incur in connection with the offering of securities under this Registration Statement on Form S-3. An estimate of the aggregate expenses in connection with the issuance and distribution of the securities being offered will be included in the applicable prospectus supplement.

may be provided under applicable law, including in respect of any liability imposed on any Officer with respect to any of the following:

- (a) Breach of a duty of care vis-à-vis the Company or vis-à-vis another person;
- (b) Breach of a duty of loyalty vis-à-vis the Company, provided that the Officer acted in good faith and had reasonable grounds to believe that the action in question would not adversely affect the Company;
- (c) Financial liability which shall be imposed upon said Officer in favor of another person as a result of any action which was performed by said Officer in his or her capacity as an Officer of the Company; including
 - (c1) A payment which said Officer is obligated to make to an injured party as set forth in Section 52(54)(a)(1)(a) of the Securities Law and expenses that said Officer incurred in connection with a proceeding under Chapters H'3, H'4 or I'1 of the Securities Law, including reasonable legal expenses, which term includes attorney fees, or in connection with Article D of Chapter Four of Part Nine of the Companies Law.
- 103. Subject to the provisions of applicable law, the Company shall be entitled to indemnify post factum and/or undertake in advance to indemnify any Officer of the Company, as a result of any liability or an expense imposed on him or her or expended by him or her as a result of any action which was performed by said Officer in his or her capacity as an Officer of the Company, in respect of any liability or expense for which indemnification may be provided under applicable law, including in respect of any liability or an expense imposed on the Officer as follows:
 - (a) Financial liability imposed upon said Officer in favor of another person by virtue of a decision by a court of law, including a decision by way of settlement or a decision in arbitration which has been confirmed by a court of law, provided that the undertaking to indemnify in advance shall be limited to events which, in the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, are foreseeable, in light of the Company's activities at the time that the undertaking to indemnify was given, and shall further be limited to amounts or criteria that the Board of Directors has determined to be reasonable under the circumstances, and provided further that in the undertaking to indemnify in advance the events that the Board of Directors believes to be foreseeable in light of the Company's activities at the time that the undertaking to indemnify was given are mentioned, as is the amount or criteria that the Board of Directors determined to be reasonable under the relevant circumstances, including
 - (a1) A payment which said Officer is obligated to make to an injured party as set forth in Section 52(54)(a)(1)(a) of the Securities Law and expenses that said Officer incurred in connection with a proceeding under Chapters H'3, H'4 or I'1 of the Securities Law, including reasonable legal expenses, which term includes attorney fees, or in connection with Article D of Chapter Four of Part Nine of the Companies Law.
 - (b) Reasonable litigation expenses, including attorney fees, expended by the Officer as a result of an inquiry or a proceeding conducted in respect of such Officer by an authority authorized to conduct same, which was concluded without the submission of an indictment against said Officer and without any financial penalty being imposed on said Officer instead of a criminal proceeding (as such term is defined in the Companies Law), or which was concluded without the submission of an indictment against said Officer with a financial penalty being imposed on said Officer instead of a criminal proceeding, in respect of a criminal charge which does not require proof of criminal intent or in connection with a financial sanction.
 - (c) reasonable litigation expenses, including attorney fees, which said Officer shall have expended or shall have been obligated to expend by a court of law, in any proceedings which shall have been filed against said Officer by or on behalf of the Company or by another person, or with regard to any criminal charge of which said Officer was acquitted, or with regard to any criminal charge of which said Officer was convicted which does not require proof of criminal intent.

- 104. Subject to the provisions of applicable law, the Company shall be entitled, in advance, to exempt any Officer of the Company from liability, in whole or in part, with regard to damage incurred as a result of the breach of duty of care vis-à-vis the Company.
- 105. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall be entitled to insure, indemnify and exempt from liability any Officer of the Company to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law. Accordingly, (i) any amendment to the Companies Law, the Securities Law or any other applicable law expanding the right of any Officer to be insured, indemnified or exempted from liability in comparison to the provisions of these Articles shall, to the extent permitted by applicable law, immediately apply to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, and (ii) any amendment to the Companies Law, the Securities Law or any other applicable law adversely affecting the right of any Officer to be insured, indemnified or exempted from liability in comparison to the provision of these Articles shall not be in effect post factum and shall not affect the Company's obligation or ability to insure, indemnify or exempt from liability an Officer for any act or omission occurring prior to such amendment, unless otherwise provided by applicable law.

Pursuant to indemnification and release agreements, Teva releases its Officers from liability and indemnifies them to the fullest extent permitted by law and the Articles. Under these agreements, Teva undertakes to indemnify each Officer for monetary liabilities imposed by a court judgment (including a settlement or an arbitrator's award that were approved by a court), provided that such undertaking (i) shall be limited to matters that are connected or otherwise related to certain events or circumstances set forth therein, and (ii) shall not exceed \$200 million in the aggregate per Officer. Under Israeli law, indemnification is subject to other limitations, including those described above. Subject to applicable law, Teva may also indemnify its Officers following specific events.

Teva's Officers are also covered by directors' and officers' liability insurance.

Teva Pharmaceutical Finance IV, LLC, Teva Pharmaceutical Finance V, LLC and Teva Pharmaceutical Finance VI, LLC

Section 18-108 of the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act provides that "subject to such standards and restrictions, if any, as are set forth in its limited liability company agreement, a limited liability company may, and shall have the power to, indemnify and hold harmless any member or manager or other person from and against any and all claims and demands whatsoever."

Section 3.3 of the operating agreement of each of the LLCs provides as follows (with the references therein to the "Company" referring to the applicable LLC):

Any Person made, or threatened to be made, a party to any action or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by reason of the fact that such Person is or was (i) a Member, or (ii) an employee, officer, director, manager, shareholder or partner of a Member, or (iii) a Manager, or (iv) such other Persons (including employees of the Company) as the Majority in Interest of the Members may designate from time to time, in their sole and absolute discretion (collectively, the "Indemnified Persons"), shall be indemnified by the Company for any losses or damage sustained with respect to such action or proceeding, and the Company shall advance such Indemnified Person's reasonable related expenses to the fullest extent permitted by law. The Company shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of the Indemnified Persons against any liability asserted against or incurred by them. The duty of the Company to indemnify the Indemnified Persons under this Section 3.3 shall not extend to actions or omissions of any Indemnified Person which are grossly negligent or which involve fraud, misrepresentation, bad faith, or other willful misconduct by such Indemnified Person of this Agreement or which are in derogation of the fiduciary duties owed by such Indemnified Person to the Company and the Members, in each case as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction. No Indemnified Person shall be liable to the Company or any other Member for actions taken in good faith. The duty of the Company to indemnify the

Indemnified Persons under this Section 3.3 shall be limited to the assets of the Company, and no recourse shall be available against any Member for satisfaction of such indemnification obligations of the Company.

Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V., Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V. and Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V.

Under the laws of the Netherlands, indemnification by a company of its officers and directors for liability incurred in their capacity as such is not permitted where the liability results from the gross negligence or willful malfeasance of the officers or directors. Subject to the foregoing, the general meeting of shareholders of the Netherlands BVs can grant an indemnity or an annual discharge to a managing director of the Netherlands BVs. As for the indemnity, article 16(3) of the articles of association of the Netherlands BVs provides that "the remuneration and the other employment conditions of each managing director are determined by the general meeting." As for the annual discharge, the relevant clauses of Article 21 of the articles of association of each of the Netherlands BVs provide as follows:

- 1. The general meeting adopts the financial statements. The management board adopts the annual report.
- 2. Adoption of the financial statements does not discharge a managing director, unless the provisions of paragraph 3 apply. By separate resolution the general meeting can discharge a managing director for the management conducted in the financial year in question, insofar as that management is apparent from the financial statements or has been made known to the general meeting.
- 3. If all the shareholders are also managing directors of the Company, signing of the financial statements by all the managing directors also serves as adoption of the financial statements, provided that all the parties entitled to attend meetings have been given the opportunity to take note of the drafted financial statements and have agreed to this manner of adoption. Adoption of the financial statements in this manner discharges the managing directors.

ITEM 16. EXHIBITS

The exhibits listed below in the "Exhibit Index" are part of this Registration Statement and are numbered in accordance with Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 17. UNDERTAKINGS

- (a) The undersigned registrants hereby undertake as follows:
 - (1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this Registration Statement:
 - (i) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;
 - (ii) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the Registration Statement (or the most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the Registration Statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or any decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the "Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective Registration Statement; and

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the Registration Statement or any material change to such information in the Registration Statement;

provided, however, that paragraphs (a)(1)(i), (a)(1)(ii) and (a)(1)(iii) of this section do not apply if the information required to be included in a post-effective amendment by those paragraphs is contained in periodic reports filed with or furnished to the SEC by the registrants pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that are incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement, or is contained in a form of prospectus filed pursuant to Rule 424(b) that is part of the Registration Statement.

- (2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a new Registration Statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the termination of the offering.
- (4) That, for the purpose of determining liability under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser:
 - (A) Each prospectus filed by the registrants pursuant to Rule 424(b)(3) shall be deemed to be part of the Registration Statement as of the date the filed prospectus was deemed part of and included in the Registration Statement; and
 - (B) Each prospectus required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2), (b)(5), or (b)(7) as part of a Registration Statement in reliance on Rule 430B relating to an offering made pursuant to Rule 415(a)(1)(i), (vii), or (x) for the purpose of providing the information required by section 10(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 shall be deemed to be part of and included in the Registration Statement as of the earlier of the date such form of prospectus is first used after effectiveness or the date of the first contract of sale of securities in the offering described in the prospectus. As provided in Rule 430B, for liability purposes of the issuer and any person that is at that date an underwriter, such date shall be deemed to be a new effective date of the Registration Statement relating to the securities in the Registration Statement to which that prospectus relates, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof. Provided, however, that no statement made in a Registration Statement or prospectus that is part of the Registration Statement or made in a document incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference into the Registration Statement or prospectus that is part of the Registration Statement will, as to a purchaser with a time of contract of sale prior to such effective date, supersede or modify any statement that was made in the Registration Statement or prospectus that was part of the Registration Statement or made in any such document immediately prior to such effective date; or
- (5) That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrants under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the initial distribution of the securities:

The undersigned registrants undertake that in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrants pursuant to this Registration Statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrants will be a seller to the purchaser and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

- (i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrants relating to the offering required to be filed pursuant to Rule 424;
- (ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrants or used or referred to by the undersigned registrants;

- (iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the undersigned registrants or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrants; and
- (iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrants to the purchaser.
- (b) The undersigned registrants hereby undertake that, for purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each filing of any registrants' annual report pursuant to Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that is incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement shall be deemed to be a new Registration Statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
- (c) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of the registrants pursuant to the foregoing provisions, the registrants have been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrants of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrants in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrants will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
- (d) The undersigned registrants hereby undertake to file an application for the purpose of determining the eligibility of the trustee to act under Subsection (a) of Section 310 of the Trust Indenture Act in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the SEC under Section 305(b)(2) of the Trust Indenture Act.

EXHIBIT INDEX

- *1.1 Underwriting Agreement relating to ordinary shares issued by Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited
- *1.2 Underwriting Agreement relating to purchase contracts issued by Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited
- *1.3 Underwriting Agreement relating to units issued by Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited
- *1.4 Underwriting Agreement relating to debt securities issued by Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited
- *1.5 Underwriting Agreement relating to debt securities issued by Teva Pharmaceutical Finance IV, LLC
- *1.6 Underwriting Agreement relating to debt securities issued by Teva Pharmaceutical Finance V, LLC
- *1.7 Underwriting Agreement relating to debt securities issued by Teva Pharmaceutical Finance VI, LLC
- *1.8 Underwriting Agreement relating to debt securities issued by Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V.
- *1.9 Underwriting Agreement relating to debt securities issued by Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V.
- *1.10 Underwriting Agreement relating to debt securities issued by Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V.
- 3.1 Memorandum of Association of Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registration Statement on Form F-1 (Reg. No. 33-15736))
- 3.2 Amendment to Memorandum of Association of Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (1) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 14, 2018)
- 3.3 Articles of Association of Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (2) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 9, 2020)
- 4.1 Second Amended and Restated Deposit Agreement, dated December 4, 2018, among Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited, Citibank N.A., as depository, and the holders from time to time of shares (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 4, 2018)
- 4.2 Form of Senior Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited Indenture (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on January 29, 2018)
- 4.3 Form of Guaranteed Senior Finance Subsidiary Indenture (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on January 29, 2018)
- 4.4 Form of Subordinated Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited Indenture (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on January 29, 2018)
- 4.5 Form of Guaranteed Subordinated Finance Subsidiary Indenture (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed on January 29, 2018)
- *4.6 Form of Purchase Contract Agreement
- 4.7 Senior Indenture, dated as of March 14, 2018, by and among Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V., Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2018)
- 4.8 Senior Indenture, dated as of March 14, 2018, by and among Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V., Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2018)

- **5.1 Opinion of Tulchinsky Marciano Cohen Levitski & Co. (Israeli law)
- **5.2 Opinion of Kirkland & Ellis LLP (New York law)
- **5.3 Opinion of Van Doorne N.V. (Dutch law)
- **23.1 Consent of Kesselman & Kesselman
 - 23.2 Consent of Tulchinsky Marciano Cohen Levitski & Co. (included in Exhibit 5.1)
 - 23.3 Consent of Kirkland & Ellis LLP (included in Exhibit 5.2)
 - 23.4 Consent of Van Doorne, N.V. (included in Exhibit 5.3)
 - 24.1 Power of Attorney of Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (included on the signature pages of this Registration Statement)
- **25.1 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited Senior Indenture
- **25.2 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited Subordinated Indenture
- **25.3 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance IV, LLC Senior Indenture
- **25.4 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance IV, LLC Subordinated Indenture
- **25.5 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance V, LLC Senior Indenture
- **25.6 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance V, LLC Subordinated Indenture
- **25.7 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance VI, LLC Senior Indenture
- **25.8 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance VI, LLC Subordinated Indenture
- **25.9 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V. Senior Indenture
- **25.10 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V. Subordinated Indenture
- **25.11 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V. Senior Indenture
- **25.12 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V. Subordinated Indenture
- **25.13 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V. Senior Indenture
- **25.14 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the form of the Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V. Subordinated Indenture
- **25.15 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the Senior Indenture, dated as of March 14, 2018, by and among Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V., Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.
- **25.16 Statement of Eligibility of The Bank of New York Mellon on Form T-1, as Trustee for the Senior Indenture, dated as of March 14, 2018, by and among Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V., Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee
- 1. English translation or summary from Hebrew original, which is the official version.
- 2. English translation or summary from Hebrew original, which is the official version, except as to Exhibit A thereto, the official version of which is in English.
- * To be filed, if necessary, subsequent to the effectiveness of this Registration Statement by an amendment to the Registration Statement or incorporated by reference to a Current Report on Form 8-K.
- ** Filed herewith.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, the Registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Tel Aviv, Israel, on October 27, 2021.

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

By: /s/ Andrew Weil

Name: Andrew Weil

Title: Chief Accounting Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENT, that each of the undersigned directors and/or officers of Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited, a corporation organized under the laws of Israel, hereby constitutes and appoints Kåre Schultz, Eli Kalif and Andrew Weil, and each of them, his or her true and lawful attorneys-infact and agents, with full power of substitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign, execute and deliver with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 (i) any and all post-effective amendments to this Registration Statement on Form S-3, (ii) any Registration Statement relating to this offering that is to be effective upon filing pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, (iii) any exhibits to any such Registration Statement or post-effective amendments or (iv) any and all applications and other documents in connection with any such Registration Statement or pre-effective or post-effective amendments, and generally to do all things and perform any and all acts and things whatsoever requisite and necessary or desirable to enable Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited and the other registrants to comply with the provisions of the Securities Act of 1933 and all requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

| | Name | Title | Date |
|-----|---|--|------------------|
| Ву: | /s/ Sol J. Barer Dr. Sol J. Barer | Chairman | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Kåre Schultz Kåre Schultz | President and Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive Officer) | October 27, 2021 |
| Ву: | /s/ Eli Kalif Eli Kalif | Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer) | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Andrew Weil Andrew Weil | Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer) | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Rosemary A. Crane Rosemary A. Crane | Director | October 27, 2021 |

| 1 | Name | Title | Date |
|-----|---|--------------------------------|------------------|
| Ву: | /s/ Amir Elstein Amir Elstein | Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Ronit Satchi-Fainaro Prof. Ronit Satchi-Fainaro | Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Jean-Michel Halfon Jean-Michel Halfon | Director | October 27, 2021 |
| Ву: | /s/ Gerald M. Lieberman Gerald M. Lieberman | Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Roberto A. Mignone Roberto A. Mignone | Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Perry D. Nisen Dr. Perry D. Nisen | Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Nechemia J. Peres | Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | Nechemia (Chemi) J. Peres /s/ Janet S. Vergis | Director | October 27, 2021 |
| Ву: | Janet S. Vergis /s/ Tal Zaks | Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | Dr. Tal Zaks /s/ Corey Sparks Corey Sparks | Authorized U.S. Representative | October 27, 2021 |

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in Parsippany, New Jersey on October 27, 2021.

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE IV, LLC

By: /s/ Asaph Namaan

Name: Asaph Namaan

Title: President, Chief Executive Officer and Manager

By: /s/ Corey Sparks

Name: Corey Sparks

Title: Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Manager

| 1 | <u>Name</u> | Title | Date |
|-----|-------------------------------|--|------------------|
| Ву: | /s/ Asaph Namaan Asaph Namaan | President, Chief Executive Officer and Manager | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Corey Sparks Corey Sparks | Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Manager | October 27, 2021 |

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in Parsippany, New Jersey on October 27, 2021.

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE V, LLC

By: /s/ Asaph Namaan

Name: Asaph Namaan

Title: President, Chief Executive Officer and Manager

By: /s/ Corey Sparks

Name: Corey Sparks

Title: Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Manager

| • | <u>Name</u> | Title | Date |
|-----|-------------------------------|--|------------------|
| Ву: | /s/ Asaph Namaan Asaph Namaan | President, Chief Executive Officer and Manager | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Corey Sparks Corey Sparks | Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Manager | October 27, 2021 |

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in Parsippany, New Jersey on October 27, 2021.

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE VI, LLC

By: /s/ Asaph Namaan

Name: Asaph Namaan

Title: President, Chief Executive Officer and Manager

By: /s/ Corey Sparks

Name: Corey Sparks

Title: Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Manager

| 1 | <u>Name</u> | Title | Date |
|-----|-------------------------------|--|------------------|
| Ву: | /s/ Asaph Namaan Asaph Namaan | President, Chief Executive Officer and Manager | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Corey Sparks Corey Sparks | Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Manager | October 27, 2021 |

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in The Netherlands on October 27, 2021.

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS II B.V.

By: /s/ Stephen Harper

Name: Stephen Harper Title: Managing Director

By: /s/ David Vrhovec

Name: David Vrhovec Title: Managing Director

| | Name | <u>Title</u> | Date |
|-----|-----------------------------------|--------------------------------|------------------|
| By: | /s/ Stephen Harper Stephen Harper | Managing Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ David Vrhovec David Vrhovec | Managing Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Corey Sparks Corey Sparks | Authorized U.S. Representative | October 27, 2021 |

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in The Netherlands on October 27, 2021.

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS III B.V.

By: /s/ Stephen Harper

Name: Stephen Harper Title: Managing Director

By: /s/ David Vrhovec

Name: David Vrhovec Title: Managing Director

| | Name | Title | Date |
|-----|-----------------------------------|--------------------------------|------------------|
| By: | /s/ Stephen Harper Stephen Harper | Managing Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ David Vrhovec David Vrhovec | Managing Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Corey Sparks Corey Sparks | Authorized U.S. Representative | October 27, 2021 |

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 and has duly caused this Registration Statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in The Netherlands on October 27, 2021.

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS IV B.V.

By: /s/ Stephen Harper

Name: Stephen Harper Title: Managing Director

By: /s/ David Vrhovec

Name: David Vrhovec Title: Managing Director

| | Name | <u>Title</u> | Date |
|-----|-----------------------------------|--------------------------------|------------------|
| By: | /s/ Stephen Harper Stephen Harper | Managing Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ David Vrhovec David Vrhovec | Managing Director | October 27, 2021 |
| By: | /s/ Corey Sparks Corey Sparks | Authorized U.S. Representative | October 27, 2021 |

טולצ'ינסקי מרציאנו כהן לויצקי ושות' TULCHINSKY MARCIANO COHEN LEVITSKI & Co.

LAW OFFICE משרד עורכי דין

www.tslaw.co.il

03-6075050 • פקס. 03-6075000 • טל. 03-6075000 • פקס. 03-6075050 • פקס. 03-6075050 • מגדל המוזיאון • רח' ברקוביץ' 4 • תל אביב

Museum Tower • 4 Berkowitz St. • Tel Aviv 6423806 • Tel. (972) 3-6075000 • Fax. (972) 3-6075050

| Menachem Tulchinsky, Adv. | Ariel Shanon, Adv. | אריאל שנון, עו"ד | מנחם טולצ'ינסקי, עו"ד |
|--------------------------------------|---------------------------|-----------------------|----------------------------|
| Amir Levitski, Adv. | Tal Levy, Adv. | טל לוי, עו"ד | אמיר לויצקי, עו"ד |
| David Cohen, Adv. | Ohad Gamliel, Adv. | אוהד גמליאל, עו"ד | דיויד כהן, עו"ד |
| Isaac Marciano, Adv. (C.P.A.) | Mayan Miller, Adv. | מעין מילר, עו"ד | יצחק מרציאנו, עו"ד (רו"ח) |
| Helena Beilin, Adv. | Shira Efrati, Adv. | שירה אפרתי, עו"ד | הלנה ביילין, עו"ד |
| Yossi Ratnovsky, Adv. (C.P.A.) | Adi Levitski Nevo, Adv. | עדי לויצקי נבו, עו"ד | יוסי רטנובסקי, עו"ד (רו"ח) |
| Alon Tabak Aviram, Adv.* | Alon Nahear, Adv. | אלון נהיר, עו"ד | אלון טבק אבירם, עו"ד |
| Glenn (Gershon) Shalom Winter, Adv.* | Ben Baharav, Adv. | בן בהרב, עו"ד | גרשון שלום וינטר, עו"ד |
| Uriel Barak, Adv.* | Ro'i Azoff, Adv. | רועי אזוף, עו"ד | אוריאל ברק, עו"ד |
| Michal Markovitz Blachar, Adv. | Stav Koren Warter, Adv. | סתיו קורן וורטר, עו"ד | מיכל מרקוביץ בלשר, עו"ד |
| Dafna Achiam Tal, Adv. | Miriam Sade Fischer, Adv. | מרים שדה פישר, עו"ד | דפנה אחיעם טל, עו"ד |
| Amit Hirsch, Adv. | Karin Abramovich, Adv. | קארין אברמוביץ, עו"ד | עמית הירש, עו"ד |
| Galia Suesskind-Spiegel, Adv. | Itay Peeri, Adv. | איתי פארי, עו"ד | גליה זיסקינד-שפיגל, עו"ד |
| Elad Mirvis, Adv. | Harel Asaf, Adv. | הראל אסף, עו"ד | אלעד מירוויס, עו"ד |
| Tamar Nesher, Adv. | Shir Zalmanovich, Adv. | שיר זלמנוביץ, עו"ד | תמר נשר, עו"ד |
| Ilan Sapir, Adv. | Sapir Polani, Adv. | ספיר פולני, עו"ד | אילן ספיר, עו"ד |
| Ayelet Broditzky, Adv. | Nadav Rosengarten, Adv. | נדב רוזנגרטן, עו"ד | אילת ברודיצקי, עו"ד |
| Lana Tavor, Adv. | Gil Shalev, Adv. | גיל שלו, עו"ד | לנה תבור, עו"ד |
| Avital Mandel Hara, Adv. | Hen Kevan, Adv. | חן קיבן, עו"ד | אביטל מנדל הרה, עו"ד |
| Avital Sela, Adv. | | | אביטל סלע, עו"ד |

Member of the N.Y. Bar Association

October 27, 2021

Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited Teva Pharmaceutical Finance IV, LLC

Teva Pharmaceutical Finance V. LLC

Teva Pharmaceutical Finance VI, LLC

Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V.

Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V.

Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V.

c/o Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited

124 Dvorah Hanevi'a Street

Tel Aviv 6944020

Israel

Re: Registration Statement on Form S-3

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have acted as Israeli counsel for Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited, an Israeli corporation ("Teva" or the "Company"), in connection with the preparation and filing by Teva with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), of the Registration

'טולצ'ינסקי שטרן מרציאנו כהן לויצקי ושות TULCHINSKY MARCIANO COHEN LEVITSKI & Co.

Statement on Form S-3 (the "Registration Statement") by Teva, Teva Pharmaceutical Finance IV, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Teva Finance IV LLC"), Teva Pharmaceutical Finance V, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Teva Finance V LLC"), Teva Pharmaceutical Finance VI, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Teva Finance IV LLC and Teva Finance V LLC, the "LLCs"); Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V., a Dutch private limited liability company ("Teva Netherlands II"), Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V., a Dutch private limited liability company ("Teva Netherlands III"), and Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V., a Dutch private limited liability company ("Teva Netherlands III") and Teva Netherlands III, the "Netherlands BVs" and, together with the Teva BVs, Teva Finance NV and the LLCs, the "Finance Subsidiaries") relating to the registration of the sale from time to time of:

(A) by Teva, (i) American Depositary Shares ("ADSs"), each representing one ordinary share, par value NIS 0.10 per share, of Teva (the "Ordinary Shares"); (ii) senior debt securities (the "Teva Senior Debt Securities"), which may be issued pursuant to an indenture (the "Teva Senior Indenture") to be executed by Teva and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee; and (iii) subordinated debt securities (the "Teva Subordinated Debt Securities" and, together with the Teva Senior Debt Securities, the "Teva Debt Securities"), which may be issued pursuant to an indenture (the "Teva Subordinated Indenture" and, together with the Teva Senior Indenture, the "Teva Indentures") to be executed by Teva and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee; (iv) purchase contracts (the "Purchase Contracts") for the purchase and sale of Teva's securities or securities of third parties, a basket of such securities, an index or indices of such securities or any combination of the above; and (v) units (the "Units") consisting of one or more Purchase Contracts, Teva Debt Securities, Subsidiary Debt Securities, Ordinary Shares, ADSs, other equity securities or any combination of such securities; and

(B) by each of the Finance Subsidiaries, (i) senior debt securities (the "Subsidiary Senior Debt Securities"), guaranteed by Teva, which may be issued pursuant to an indenture (each, a "Subsidiary Senior Indenture") to be executed by the applicable Finance Subsidiary, Teva and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee; and (ii) subordinated debt securities (the "Subsidiary Subordinated Debt Securities", and together with the Subsidiary Senior Debt Securities, the "Subsidiary Debt Securities"), guaranteed by Teva, which may be issued pursuant to an indenture (each, a "Subsidiary Subordinated Indenture" and together with the Subsidiary Senior Indentures, the "Subsidiary Indentures") to be executed by the applicable Finance Subsidiary, Teva, as guarantor and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.

For purposes of the opinions hereinafter expressed, we have examined originals or copies, certified and otherwise identified to our satisfaction, of such documents, corporate records, certificates of public officials and other instruments as we have deemed necessary as a basis for the opinions expressed herein. Insofar as the opinions expressed herein involve factual matters, we have relied (without independent factual investigation), to the extent we deemed proper or necessary, upon certificates of, and other communications with, officers and employees of Teva and upon certificates of public officials. We have also considered such questions of Israeli law as we have deemed relevant and necessary as a basis for the opinions hereinafter expressed.

In making our examination, we have assumed, without any investigation, the genuineness of all signatures, the legal capacity of natural persons, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as certified, photostatic or facsimile copies and the authenticity of the originals of such copies and the legal capacity and due authenticity of all persons executing such documents, that the documents examined by us have not been amended, supplemented or otherwise modified, or determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or void, revoked, annulled, terminated or otherwise modified and that there are no agreements or understandings among the parties, written or oral, and that there is no usage of trade or course of prior dealing among the parties that would, in either case, expand, modify, supplant or qualify or otherwise effect or be inconsistent with the terms of the Registration Statement or the respective rights or obligations of the parties thereunder. We have assumed, without any investigation, the same to have been properly given and to be accurate, and we have assumed the truth of all facts communicated to us by the Company, and have assumed that all consents, minutes and protocols of meetings of the Company's board of directors and shareholders which have been provided to us are true, accurate and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Company's incorporation documents and all applicable laws.

'טולצ'ינסקי שטרן מרציאנו כהן לויצקי ושות TULCHINSKY MARCIANO COHEN LEVITSKI & Co.

In connection with the opinions as to enforceability expressed below, such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally, subject to general principles of equity and to limitations on availability of equitable relief, including specific performance (regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law) or by an implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.

In connection with all of the opinions expressed below, we have assumed, without any investigation, that, at or prior to the time of the delivery of any such security, (i) the Ordinary Shares or such other securities have been specifically authorized and approved for issuance and sale by the Company by all necessary corporate action, and such authorization shall not have been modified or rescinded (ii) the Ordinary Shares and such other securities will be issued, sold and delivered as contemplated by the Registration Statement, the prospectuses included therein and one or more purchase, underwriting or similar agreements, if applicable, and such agreements have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Company and the other parties thereto; (iii) the Company has received the consideration provided for pursuant to the relevant corporate action and, if applicable, the underwriting agreements; (iv) the Registration Statement (including any post-effective amendments) is effective under the Act, and such effectiveness shall not have been terminated or rescinded; and (v) there shall not have occurred any change in law affecting the validity or enforceability of any such security. We have also assumed that none of the terms of any security to be established subsequent to the date hereof, nor the issuance and delivery of such security, nor the compliance by Teva with the terms of such security will violate any applicable law or will result in a violation of any provision of any instrument or agreement then binding upon the relevant company (including Teva), or any restriction imposed by any court or governmental body having jurisdiction over Teva.

Our opinions expressed below are only with respect to the specific and express legal issues addressed, and do not and are not intended to address any other legal issues. No other opinions may be implied from the specific and express opinions set forth below, nor may the taking of any actions on our part be inferred or implied unless specifically and expressly stated.

Our opinions expressed below are based upon, and limited to, our consideration of only those statutes, rules and regulations of the State of Israel which, in our experience, are normally applicable to guarantors or issuers of securities of the nature of the Ordinary Shares, ADSs, Teva Debt Securities, Purchase Contracts, Units and Subsidiary Debt Securities.

Based on and subject to the foregoing, we are of the opinion that:

- 1. The Company has been duly incorporated and is validly existing as a corporation under the laws of Israel.
- 2. The Company has all necessary corporate right, power and authority necessary to consummate the preparation and filing of the Registration Statement.
- 3. The Second Amended and Restated Deposit Agreement, dated as of November 5, 2012, among Teva, Citibank, N.A., as depositary, and the Owners and Holders (each as defined therein) from time to time of ADSs issued thereunder, as amended on December 4,2018 (the "Deposit Agreement") has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by Teva.
- 4. When the Ordinary Shares, including the Ordinary Shares underlying the ADSs or any Purchase Contracts or Units, are issued in accordance with the assumptions above, such Ordinary Shares will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable.

'טולצ'ינסקי שטרן מרציאנו כהן לויצקי ושות TULCHINSKY MARCIANO COHEN LEVITSKI & Co.

- 5. When the Teva Indentures have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the parties thereto in accordance with applicable law, and when the specific terms of a particular series of Teva Debt Securities have been duly authorized and established by the parties in accordance with the relevant Teva Indenture and such Teva Debt Securities have been duly authorized, executed, authenticated, issued and delivered in accordance with the relevant Teva Indenture and any applicable underwriting or other agreement, such Teva Debt Securities will constitute valid and binding obligations of Teva, enforceable against Teva in accordance with their terms.
- 6. When the Purchase Contracts and related agreements have been duly authorized, executed, issued and delivered by the parties thereto in accordance with applicable law and with the specific terms of such related purchase contract agreement, such Purchase Contracts will constitute valid and binding obligations of Teva, enforceable against Teva in accordance with their terms.
- 7. When the Units and the related unit agreement have been duly authorized, executed, issued and delivered by the parties thereto in accordance with applicable law and with the specific terms of such related unit agreement, such Units will constitute valid and binding obligations of Teva, enforceable against Teva in accordance with their terms.
- 8. When the Subsidiary Indentures have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the parties thereto (including Teva as guarantor) in accordance with applicable law, and when the specific terms of a particular series of Subsidiary Debt Securities have been duly authorized and established in accordance with the relevant Subsidiary Indenture and such Subsidiary Debt Securities have been duly authorized, executed, authenticated, issued and delivered in accordance with the relevant Subsidiary Indenture and any applicable underwriting or other agreement, Teva's guarantee under each Subsidiary Indenture with respect to such Subsidiary Debt Securities will constitute a valid and binding obligation of Teva, enforceable against Teva in accordance with its terms.
- 9. Under the choice of law or conflicts of law doctrines of Israel, a court, tribunal or other competent authority sitting in Israel has discretion, but should apply to any claim or controversy arising under a Teva Indenture or a Subsidiary Indenture, the law of the State of New York, which is the local law governing the Teva Indentures and the Subsidiary Indentures, designated therein by the parties thereto, if properly brought to the attention of the court, tribunal or other competent authority in accordance with the laws of the State of Israel, provided there are no reasons for declaring such designation void on the grounds of public policy or as being contrary to Israeli law and provided further that, the choice of law is *bona fide* and is not made for the purpose of evading the laws of another jurisdiction.

With respect to our opinions as to the Ordinary Shares, we have assumed that, at the time of issuance and sale, a sufficient number of Ordinary Shares are registered (authorized) and available for issuance under the Company's Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association as then in effect and that the consideration for the issuance and sale of any such Ordinary Shares is in an amount that is not less than the nominal (par) value thereof.

We do not purport to be expert on the laws of any jurisdiction other than the laws of the State of Israel, and we express no opinion herein as to the effect of any other laws.

We hereby consent to the filing of this opinion as an exhibit to the Registration Statement. By giving our consent, we do not admit that we are in the category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Act or the rules and regulations issued or promulgated thereunder.

This opinion is being delivered to you for your information in connection with the above matter and addresses matters only as of the date hereof and we assume no obligation to update (including, without limitation, with respect to any action which may be required in the future to perfect or continue the perfection of any security interest) or to supplement such opinions to reflect any fact or circumstance that hereafter may come to our attention or any change in law that hereafter may occur or become effective.

The opinions expressed herein represent the judgment of this law firm as to the legal matters addressed herein but they are not guarantees or warranties as to how a court might rule on such matters and should not be construed as such.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Tulchinsky Marciano Cohen Levitski & Co. Law Offices

KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP

AND AFFILIATED PARTNERSHIPS

601 Lexington Avenue New York, NY 10022 United States

+1 212 446 4800

Facsimile: +1 212 446 4900

www.kirkland.com

October 27, 2021

Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited 124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020 Israel

Re: Registration Statement on Form S-3

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We are issuing this opinion letter in our capacity as special U.S. counsel to Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited, an Israeli corporation ("Teva") and the LLCs (as defined below) in connection with the Registration Statement on Form S-3 (the "Registration Statement") to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") by Teva, Teva Pharmaceutical Finance IV, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Teva Finance IV, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Teva Finance V LLC"), Teva Pharmaceutical Finance VI, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("Teva Finance IV LLC and Teva Finance V LLC, the "LLCs"), Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V., a Dutch private limited liability company ("Teva Finance Netherlands II"), Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V. ("Teva Finance Netherlands III") and Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V. ("Teva Finance Netherlands III, the "Netherlands Finance Subsidiaries" and, together with Teva, the "Companies"), to register:

- (a) by Teva, (i) American Depositary Shares ("<u>ADSs</u>"), each representing one ordinary share, par value NIS 0.10 per share, of Teva ("<u>Ordinary Shares</u>"); (ii) senior debt securities (the "<u>Teva Senior Debt Securities</u>"), which may be issued pursuant to an indenture (the "<u>Teva Senior Indenture</u>") to be executed by Teva and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee; and subordinated debt securities (the "<u>Teva Subordinated Debt Securities</u>" and, together with the Teva Senior Debt Securities, the "<u>Teva Debt Securities</u>"), which may be issued pursuant to an indenture (the "<u>Teva Subordinated Indenture</u>" and, together with the Teva Senior Indenture, the "<u>Teva Indentures</u>") to be executed by Teva and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee; (iii) purchase contracts (the "<u>Purchase Contracts</u>") for the purchase or sale of Teva's securities or securities of third parties, a basket of such securities, an index or indices of such securities or any combination of the above; and (iv) units (the "<u>Units</u>") consisting of one or more Purchase Contracts, Ordinary Shares, ADSs, Teva Debt Securities, Finance Subsidiary Debt Securities, other equity securities or any combination of such securities; and
- (b) by each of the Finance Subsidiaries, (i) senior debt securities (the "Finance Subsidiary Senior Debt Securities"), guaranteed by Teva, which may be issued pursuant to an indenture (each, a "Finance Subsidiary Senior Indenture") to be executed by the applicable Finance Subsidiary, Teva and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, including the Senior Indenture, dated as of March 14, 2018, by and among Teva Finance Netherlands III, Teva and the Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee and the Senior Indenture, dated as of March 14, 2018, by and among Teva Finance Netherlands II, Teva and the Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (together, the "2018 Indentures"); and (ii) subordinated debt securities (the "Finance Subsidiary Senior Debt Securities," and together with the Finance Subsidiary Senior Debt Securities, the "Finance Subsidiary Debt Securities"), guaranteed by Teva, which may be issued pursuant to an indenture (each, a "Finance Subsidiary Subordinated Indenture," and together with the Finance Subsidiary Senior Indentures, and the 2018 Indentures, the "Finance Subsidiary Indentures") to be executed by the applicable Finance Subsidiary, Teva and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee.

Austin Bay Area Beijing Boston Brussels Chicago Dallas Hong Kong Houston London Los Angeles Munich Paris Salt Lake City Shanghai Washington, D.C.

KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP

Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited October 27, 2021 Page 2

For purposes of the opinions hereinafter expressed, we have examined copies of the Certificate of Formation and the Operating Agreement of each of the LLCs, the Second Amended and Restated Deposit Agreement, dated as of December 4, 2018, among Teva, Citibank N.A., as depositary (the "Depositary"), and the holders and beneficial owners from time to time of ADSs issued thereunder, (the "Deposit Agreement"), the forms of the Teva Indentures and the Finance Subsidiary Indentures, the Registration Statement and originals or copies, certified and otherwise identified to our satisfaction, of such other documents, corporate or limited liability company records, certificates of public officials and other instruments as we have deemed necessary as a basis for the opinions expressed herein. Insofar as the opinions expressed herein involve factual matters, we have relied (without independent factual investigation), to the extent we deemed proper or necessary, upon certificates of, and other communications with, officers and employees of the Companies and upon certificates of public officials. In addition, our opinions in paragraph (1) below are based solely upon certificates of good standing issued by the Secretary of State of Delaware.

In connection with this opinion, we have assumed that (a) the Registration Statement, and any amendments thereto (including post-effective amendments), at the time the offered securities are sold will be effective under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"); (b) a prospectus supplement will have been prepared and filed with the Commission describing the securities offered thereby; (c) all offered securities will be issued and sold in compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws and in the manner stated in the Registration Statement and the applicable prospectus supplement; (d) a definitive purchase, underwriting, sales agency or similar agreement with respect to the offered securities will have been duly authorized and validly executed and delivered by the applicable Company and the other parties thereto; (e) any applicable indenture and indenture trustee will have been qualified under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended; (f) with respect to any Units, consisting of one or more Purchase Contracts, Ordinary Shares, ADSs Teva Debt Securities, Finance Subsidiary Debt Securities, other equity securities or any combination of such securities, such Units will be authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable (to the extent applicable); and (g) the Deposit Agreement will not have been terminated or modified subsequent to the date thereof and remains in full force and effect;. We have also assumed that Teva is and will be a company duly incorporated and validly existing as an Israeli corporation in Israel and in good standing under the laws of Israel.

Based on the foregoing, and having regard for such legal considerations as we have deemed relevant, we advise you that:

- 1. Each of the LLCs is validly existing in good standing as a limited liability company under the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act.
- 2. Assuming the Deposit Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the parties thereto, when ADSs are issued in accordance with the Deposit Agreement against the deposit of duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable Ordinary Shares, such ADSs will be validly issued and will entitle the holders thereof to the rights specified therein.
- 3. When the Teva Debt Securities and the applicable Teva Indenture have been authorized by appropriate corporate authorization, the applicable Teva Indenture has been duly executed by the parties thereto, and the Teva Debt Securities have been executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the applicable Teva Indenture against payment therefor, the Teva Debt Securities will be validly issued and the Teva Debt Securities will constitute binding obligations of Teva in accordance with their terms and the terms of the applicable Teva Indenture.

KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP

Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited October 27, 2021 Page 3

- 4. When the Finance Subsidiary Debt Securities and the applicable Finance Subsidiary Indenture have been authorized by appropriate corporate authorization, the applicable Finance Subsidiary Indenture has been duly executed by the parties thereto, and the Finance Subsidiary Debt Securities have been executed, authenticated and delivered in accordance with the applicable Finance Subsidiary Indenture against payment therefor, the Finance Subsidiary Debt Securities will constitute binding obligations of such Finance Subsidiary in accordance with their terms and the terms of the applicable Finance Subsidiary Indenture and Teva's guarantee under each Finance Subsidiary Indenture with respect to such Finance Subsidiary Debt Securities will constitute the valid and binding obligation of Teva.
- 5. When the Purchase Contracts and the related purchase contract agreement have been duly authorized by appropriate corporate authorization, and the Purchase Contracts have been duly executed and issued in accordance with the related purchase contract agreement, the Purchase Contracts will constitute valid and binding obligations of Teva, enforceable against Teva in accordance with their terms.
- 6. When the Units and the related unit agreement have been duly authorized by appropriate corporate authorization, and the Units have been duly executed and issued in accordance with the related unit agreement, the Unit will constitute valid and binding obligations of Teva, enforceable against Teva in accordance with their terms.

Each opinion (an "enforceability opinion") in this letter that any security is a valid and binding obligation or is enforceable in accordance with its terms is subject to: (i) the effect of bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent conveyance and other similar laws and judicially developed doctrines in this area such as substantive consolidation and equitable subordination; (ii) the effect of general principles of equity; and (iii) other commonly recognized statutory and judicial constraints on enforceability including statutes of limitations. In addition, we do not express any opinion as to the enforceability of any rights to contribution or indemnification which may be violative of public policy underlying any law, rule or regulation (including any federal or state securities law, rule or regulation). "General principles of equity" include, but are not limited to: principles limiting the availability of specific performance and injunctive relief; principles which limit the availability of a remedy under certain circumstances where another remedy has been elected; principles requiring reasonableness, good faith and fair dealing in the performance and enforcement of an agreement by the party seeking enforcement; principles which may permit a party to cure a material failure to perform its obligations; and principles affording equitable defenses such as waiver, laches and estoppel. We express no opinion with respect to the enforceability of any provision which purports to waive the benefit of usury laws. It is possible that terms in a particular contract covered by our enforceability opinion may not prove enforceable for reasons other than those explicitly cited in this letter should an actual enforcement action be brought, but (subject to all the exceptions, qualifications, exclusions and other limitations contained in this letter) such unenforceability would not in our opinion prevent the party entitled to enforce that contract from realizing the principal benefits purported to be provided to that party by the terms

This opinion does not cover the law of any jurisdiction other than the law of the State of New York and the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act. We did not find it necessary for the purposes of this opinion, and accordingly we do not purport to cover herein, the application of the securities or "Blue Sky" laws of the various states. We undertake no responsibility to update or supplement this opinion in response to changes in law or future events or other circumstances. We have assumed the indentures, purchase contract agreement and unit agreement referenced in the numbered paragraphs above will be governed by the law of the State of New York.

This opinion is being furnished in accordance with the requirements of Item 601 of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Act, and no opinion is expressed herein as to any matter pertaining to the contents of the Registration Statement, other than as to the specific issues addressed herein, and no opinion may be inferred or implied beyond that expressly stated herein.

KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP

Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited October 27, 2021 Page 4

We hereby consent to the filing of this opinion as an exhibit to the Registration Statement and to the reference to this opinion in the Registration Statement in the section "Legal Matters." In giving this consent, we do not thereby admit that we are "experts" within the meaning of the Act.

Yours very truly,

/s/ KIRKLAND & ELLIS LLP

Jachthavenweg 121 1081 KM Amsterdam P.O. Box 75265 1070 AG Amsterdam the Netherlands

Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V. Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V. Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V.

c/o Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited 124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020 Israel

Date 27 October 2021 Our ref. 40.00.3000

Subject Registration Statement on Form S-3 re: Teva Pharmaceutical Finance

Netherlands II B.V., Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V.

and Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V.

T +31 20 6789 123 F +31 20 6789 589

Dear Sirs,

We have acted as Dutch legal advisers to Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V., Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V. and Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V., each a Dutch private limited liability company (each a **Dutch Company**), in connection with the preparation and filing of the Registration Statement on Form S-3 by Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited, an Israeli corporation (**Teva**), the Dutch Companies, Teva Pharmaceutical Finance IV, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (**Teva Finance IV LLC**), Teva Pharmaceutical Finance VI, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (**Teva Finance VI LLC**, to Delaware limited liability company (**Teva Finance VI LLC**, to Delaware Entities together with the Dutch Companies, the **Finance Subsidiaries**) (the **Registration Statement**), with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933 (the **Act**), on or about the date hereof, for the purpose of providing for the registration of the sale from time to time by, among others, the Dutch Companies of (i) senior debt securities, guaranteed by Teva, which may be issued pursuant to a senior indenture to be executed by the applicable Finance Subsidiary, Teva and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, and (ii) subordinated debt securities guaranteed by Teva (the senior debt securities and subordinated debt securities, collectively, the **Debt Securities**), which may be issued pursuant to a subordinated indenture to be executed by the applicable Finance Subsidiary, Teva and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (each such subordinated indenture and each such senior indenture, an **Indenture** and, collectively, the **Indentures**).

For the purpose of this opinion, we have examined and relied only on the documents listed in Schedule 2 (*Documents*) and Schedule 3 (*Corporate Documents*), which shall form part of this opinion.

The documents listed in Schedule 2 are referred to as the **Documents** and the documents listed in Schedule 3 as the **Corporate Documents**.

Unless otherwise defined in this opinion (including Schedule 1) or unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions defined in the Documents shall have the same meanings when used in this opinion.

In connection with such examination and in giving this opinion, we have assumed:

- (i) the genuineness of the signatures to the Documents and the Corporate Documents, the authenticity and completeness of the Documents and the Corporate Documents submitted to us as originals, the conformity to the original documents of the Documents and Corporate Documents submitted to us as copies and the authenticity and completeness of those original documents:
- (ii) the due incorporation and valid existence of, the corporate power and authority of and the due authorization and execution of the Documents by, each of the parties thereto (other than the Dutch Companies) under any applicable law (other than Dutch law);
- (iii) the due compliance with all matters of, and the validity, binding effect and enforceability of the Documents under, any applicable law (other than Dutch law) and in any jurisdiction (other than the Netherlands) in which an obligation under the Documents falls to be performed;
- (iv) the due authorization and due execution by each Dutch Company of the Documents submitted to and examined by us in draft in the form of those drafts;
- (v) that (1) no defects (*gebreken*) attach to the formation (*totstandkoming*) of any Dutch Company not appearing on the face of its Deed of Incorporation and each Deed of Incorporation has been signed by a Dutch civil-law notary (*notaris*) and (2) the Extracts accurately and completely reflect the matters purported to be confirmed or evidenced thereby;
- (vi) that (1) no resolution for the dissolution (*ontbinding*) of any Dutch Company has been taken and no application has been made for the (opening of) any Insolvency Proceeding in respect of any Dutch Company, (2) no Dutch Company has been dissolved, (3) no Dutch Company is subject to any Insolvency Proceeding and (4) no order for the administration of assets of any Dutch Company has been made; although not constituting conclusive evidence thereof, the assumptions referred to under (2) and the assumption under (3) as to Dutch Insolvency Proceedings and EU Insolvency Proceedings, are supported by the Extracts and the Corporate Enquiries;
- (vii) that no party to the Documents is controlled by or otherwise connected with a person, organisation or country which is subject to United Nations, European Union or Dutch sanctions implemented or

- effective in the Netherlands under or pursuant to the Sanction Act 1977 (Sanctiewet 1977), the Economic Offences Act (Wet economische delicten), the General Customs Act (Algemene Douanewet) or Regulations of the European Union;
- (viii) that no Dutch Company takes deposits or other repayable funds from the public within the meaning of the European Regulation No. 575/2013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and the Debt Securities will not be offered in the Netherlands;
- (ix) that the execution of and performance under the Documents by a Dutch Company are not prohibited or affected by contractual restrictions or obligations binding on that Dutch Company; and
- (x) that any foreign law which may apply with respect to any of the Documents or the transactions contemplated thereby does not affect this opinion.

This opinion is only given with respect to Dutch law in force as at the date hereof and as generally interpreted on the basis of case-law published at the date hereof. We do not express any opinion on: (i) matters of fact or the completeness or accuracy of the representations or warranties made pursuant to the Documents, (ii) matters of foreign law, international law (including the law of the European Union to the extent not directly applicable in the Netherlands), tax law (except for any specific tax opinions contained herein) and anti-trust and competition law (including the law of the European Union in respect of antitrust and competition), and (iii) commercial, accounting or non-legal matters or on the ability of the parties to meet their financial or other obligations under the Documents. We do not assume any obligation to advise the Dutch Companies (or any other person entitled to rely on this Opinion Letter) of subsequent changes in Dutch law or in the interpretation thereof.

Based on and subject to the foregoing and subject to the qualifications set out below and matters of fact, documents or events not disclosed to us, we express the following opinions:

- 1. Each Dutch Company is duly incorporated and exists under Dutch law as a private company with limited liability (besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid) and has all requisite corporate power and authority to own its properties and to conduct its business as described in the Registration Statement and as set forth in the purpose clause (Article 2) of its Articles of Association.
- 2. When the relevant Indenture has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the parties thereto (including the relevant Dutch Company) in accordance with the forms thereof that we have reviewed, and when the specific terms of a particular series of Debt Securities have been duly authorized and established in accordance with that Indenture and such Debt Securities have been duly authorized, executed, authenticated, issued and delivered in accordance with the relevant Indenture and any applicable underwriting agreement or other agreement, such Debt Securities will, as a matter of Dutch law, constitute valid and binding obligations of that Dutch Company, enforceable against that Dutch Company in accordance with its terms.

- 3. Each Dutch Company has the corporate power and authority to execute the Indentures to which it is a party, to perform its obligations thereunder and to consummate the transactions contemplated therein.
- 4. The Registration Statement has been duly signed on behalf of each Dutch Company.
- 5. No authorisations, consents, approvals, licences or exemptions from governmental, judicial or public bodies or authorities in the Netherlands are required for the entering into the Indentures by the Dutch Companies and the performance of their obligations thereunder.
- 6. It is not necessary in order to ensure the validity, enforceability or admissibility in evidence in the Dutch courts of the Indentures, that the Indentures or any other document in connection therewith be filed, registered or recorded with governmental, judicial or public bodies or authorities in the Netherlands.
- 7. The Dutch courts will recognise the choice of the laws of the State of New York to govern the Indentures.
- 8. The Dutch courts will recognise the submission by each Dutch Company in the Indentures to which it is a party to the jurisdiction of the federal or state court sitting in New York City.
- 9. A judgment by a federal or state court sitting in New York City is not enforceable in the Netherlands, but a final judgment obtained in such a court and not rendered by default and which is not subject to appeal or other means of contestation and is enforceable in New York City with respect to the payment obligations of the relevant Dutch Company under the Indentures to which it is a party would generally be upheld and be regarded by a Dutch court of competent jurisdiction as conclusive evidence when asked to render a judgment in accordance with that judgment by a federal or state court sitting in New York City, without substantive re-examination or re-litigation on the merits of the subject matter thereof, provided that the judgment has been rendered by a court of competent jurisdiction, in accordance with the principles of natural justice, its content and enforcement do not conflict with Dutch public policy and that it has not been rendered in proceedings of a penal or revenue or other public law nature.
- 10. In proceedings taken in the Netherlands neither the Dutch Companies nor any of their assets are immune from legal action or proceeding (including, without limitation, suit, attachment prior to judgment, execution or other legal process), except for assets located in the Netherlands which are designated for public service (*goederen bestemd voor de openbare dienst*) and the books and records of the Dutch Companies.

The opinions expressed above are subject to the following qualifications:

(A) Our opinions expressed herein are subject to and limited by (i) Dutch or foreign laws and regulations applicable to Insolvency Proceedings, including laws and regulations of general application relating to or affecting the rights of creditors or secured creditors and (ii) the provisions of the Insolvency Regulation.

- (B) The Dutch Bankruptcy Act (*Faillissementswet*) provides for a composition outside Insolvency Proceedings (**Dutch Pre-Insolvency Proceedings**). Dutch Pre-Insolvency Proceedings are proceedings to restructure debt of companies in financial distress. Rights and claims against a Dutch Company and security granted by a Dutch Company can be compromised as a result of a composition plan adopted and confirmed in Dutch Pre-Insolvency Proceedings. A composition plan adopted and confirmed in Dutch Pre-Insolvency Proceedings can extend to rights and claims against entities that are not incorporated under Dutch law and/or are residing outside the Netherlands on the basis that there is a connection with the Netherlands. In Dutch Pre-Insolvency Proceedings, the Court can order a cooling down period (*afkoelingsperiode*). During such cooling down period:
 - a) any recourse on the assets of the relevant debtor will require the authorisation of the court; this includes action to (i) enforce security over the assets of the debtor and (ii) collect pledged claims and to notify the debtors of such pledged claims of the right of pledge;
 - a) the debtor can continue to exercise any authority it had prior to the commencement of the cooling-down period to use, consume and dispose of assets (included secured assets) and to collect pledged claims, in each case in the ordinary course of business and subject to the requirement that the interests of parties affected thereby are sufficiently protected; and
 - b) filings for bankruptcy or suspension of payments of the debtor are suspended.
- (C) In applying the laws of the State of New York as the law governing the Indentures, the Dutch courts may, under the rules of Dutch civil international law and of the Rome I Regulation, (i) give effect to the overriding mandatory rules of Dutch law irrespective of the law otherwise applicable to the Indentures (Article 9(2) of the Rome I Regulation), (ii) give effect to the overriding mandatory rules of the law of the country where any obligation under the Indentures needs to be or has been performed, insofar as those rules render the performance of the Indentures unlawful (Article 9(3) of the Rome I Regulation) and (iii) refuse the application of a term or condition of the Indentures or a rule of foreign law applicable thereto under the Rome I Regulation, if that application is manifestly incompatible with Dutch public policy (Article 21 of the Rome I Regulation). With the express reservation that we are not qualified to assess the exact meaning and consequences of the respective provisions of the Indentures since they are not governed by Dutch law, on the face thereof we are not aware of any provision therein which is likely to give rise to situations where the overriding mandatory rules of Dutch law as currently in force will be applied by the Dutch courts or which appear to be prima facie manifestly incompatible with Dutch public policy as it currently stands.
- (D) The term "enforceable" used in the opinions above means that the obligations assumed by the relevant party under the relevant document are of a type which the Dutch courts generally enforce and does not mean that those obligations will be necessarily enforced in accordance with their terms under all circumstances. In particular, the availability in the Dutch courts of remedies, such as injunction and specific performance is at the discretion of the Dutch courts. The enforcement in the Netherlands of the Documents is subject to the Dutch rules of civil procedure as applied by the Dutch courts.

- (E) Foreign currency amounts claimed in a Dutch Insolvency Proceeding will be converted into euro for enforcement purposes at the rate prevailing at the commencement of such Dutch Insolvency Proceeding. In addition, foreign currency amounts may have to be converted into euro for enforcement purposes.
- (F) Under the Dutch rules on corporate benefit and fraudulent preference, the validity of a transaction (such as the execution of an agreement or the giving of guarantees or security) entered into by a Dutch Company may be contested. In particular:
 - (a) the validity of a transaction entered into by a Dutch Company may be contested by that Dutch Company or the public receiver (curator) in its Insolvency Proceeding (or similar officer under any foreign Insolvency Proceeding), if as a result its objects (*doel*) are transgressed and the counterparty was aware of the transgression or, without personal investigation, should have been so aware; and
 - (b) if a transaction entered into by a Dutch Company is prejudicial to the interests of its creditors, the validity of such transaction may in certain circumstances be contested by such creditors or the public receiver in an Insolvency Proceeding of that Dutch Company;
- (G) Notwithstanding the submission by a Dutch Company in the Indentures to which it is a party to the jurisdiction of the federal or state courts sitting in New York City, not all procedures of such courts (such as discovery or compulsion of witnesses) may be available against that Dutch Company in the Netherlands. In addition, a competent court in The Netherlands may assume jurisdiction (i) if the defendant enters an appearance and does not contest the jurisdiction prior to defences relating to the merits, (ii) in urgent matters, when, in view of the interests of the parties, provisional measures are required in summary proceedings, and (iii) in the context of a request to levy pre-trial attachments (conservatoire beslagen) against a Dutch Company or its assets. The Dutch courts may stay or refer proceedings if concurrent proceedings are brought elsewhere.
- (H) Under Dutch law there is some doubt whether a Dutch Company may elect domicile outside the Netherlands for service of process purposes. It is therefore advisable that service of process is also effected against a Dutch Company in the Netherlands.
- (I) A power of attorney granted by a Dutch Company will automatically terminate and become ineffective upon any Insolvency Proceeding of that Dutch Company. This may also affect the validity of the appointment of a process agent by that Dutch Company.
- (J) Pursuant to the Dutch Act on Financial Supervision (*Wet op het financieel toezicht*) persons, firms or companies (regardless of where they are domiciled) may only provide intermediary services in The Netherlands in respect of the Debt Securities if they are licensed by the Netherlands Authority for the Financial Markets (*Autoriteit Financiële Markten*) or exempt from such license requirement.

We hereby consent to the filing of this opinion as an exhibit to the Registration Statement. By giving our consent, we do not admit that we are in the category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Act or the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

This opinion is being delivered to you for your information in connection with the above matter and addresses matters only as of the date hereof. This opinion is strictly limited to the matters stated herein and is not to be read as extending by implication to any other matters in connection with the Documents or the Corporate Documents or otherwise. This opinion is given subject to and may only be relied upon by you on the express conditions that (i) Van Doorne N.V. is the party issuing this opinion, (ii) any liability of individual persons or legal entities involved in the services provided by or on behalf of Van Doorne N.V. is expressly excluded (*uitgesloten*), (iii) in respect of Dutch legal concepts, which are expressed in this opinion in English terms, the original Dutch terms will prevail, (iv) this opinion and the opinions given herein are governed by Dutch law, (v) all disputes arising from or in connection with this opinion must be submitted to the exclusive jurisdiction of, and will be exclusively decided by, the competent court in Amsterdam, the Netherlands, without prejudice to the right of appeal and appeal to the Supreme Court, and (vi) the aggregate liability of Van Doorne N.V. (and the individual persons and legal entities involved in the services provided by or on behalf of Van Doorne N.V) in respect of this opinion towards the Dutch Companies and any other person will be limited to the amount which can be claimed under the professional liability insurance(s) taken out by Van Doorne N.V., increased by the amount which Van Doorne N.V. has to bear as their own risk pursuant to the terms of such insurance(s).

Yours faithfully,

/s/ Van Doorne N.V.

SCHEDULE 1

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1 INTERPRETATION

- a) Any reference in this opinion to a "person" includes any individual person, firm, partnership, company, corporation, government agency or administrative body or any other legal entity.
- b) Any reference in this opinion made to the laws of the Netherlands or Dutch law or to the Netherlands in a geographical sense, should be read as:
 - (i) a reference to the laws as in effect in that part of the Kingdom of the Netherlands that is located in Continental Europe (Europese deel van Nederland);
 - (ii) a reference to the geographical part of the Kingdom of the Netherlands that is located in Continental Europe.

2 DEFINITIONS

In this opinion:

Articles of Association has the meaning given thereto in Schedule 3;

Commercial Register means the Commercial Register (Handelsregister) of the Dutch Chambers of Commerce (Kamers van Koophandel);

Corporate Enquiries means:

- (a) an online enquiry at the Commercial Register (*Handelsregister*), obtaining the Extracts as per the date of this opinion;
- (b) an online enquiry on the relevant website (www.rechtspraak.nl) with the Central Insolvency Register (*Centraal Insolventie Register*) confirming that the Dutch Companies are not listed with the Central Insolvency Register;
- (c) an online enquiry on the relevant website (www.rechtspraak.nl) of the EU Registrations with the Central Insolvency Register (*Centraal Insolventie Register*) confirming that the Dutch Companies are not listed on the EU Registrations with the Central Insolvency Register; and
- (d) an online enquiry on the relevant website (http://eur-lex.europe.eu/) of the Annex to Council regulation (EC) No 2580/2001, Annex I of Council regulation (EC) No 881/2002 and the Annex to Council Common Position 2001/931 relating to measures to combat terrorism, all as amended from time to time, confirming that the Dutch Companies are not listed on such annexes.

Deeds of Incorporation has the meaning given thereto in Schedule 3;

Dutch Insolvency Proceeding means a bankruptcy (*faillissement*) or a (provisional) suspension of payment (*(voorlopige) surseance van betaling*);

EC Jurisdiction Regulation means the Regulation (EC) No. 1215/2012 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 12 December 2012 on jurisdiction and the recognition and enforcement of judgments in civil and commercial matters (recast);

Extracts has the meaning given thereto in Schedule 3;

Insolvency Proceeding means a Dutch Insolvency Proceeding or any foreign insolvency proceeding howsoever named (including without limitation any insolvency proceeding referred to in the Insolvency Regulation or in Annex A to the Insolvency Regulation);

Insolvency Regulation means the Regulation (EU) 2015/848 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2015 on insolvency proceedings (recast); and

Rome I Regulation means the Regulation (EC) No. 593/2008 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 June 2008 on the law applicable to contractual obligations (Rome I).

SCHEDULE 2

DOCUMENTS

- (a) A copy of the signed Registration Statement dated on or about the date hereof; and
- (b) copies of the forms of the Indentures.

SCHEDULE 3

CORPORATE DOCUMENTS

- (a) A copy of the deed of incorporation of (i) Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V. dated 16 October 2013, (ii) Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V. dated 21 September 2015 and (iii) Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V. dated 22 April 2016 (together the **Deeds of Incorporation**);
- (b) a copy of (i) the articles of association of Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands II B.V. dated 14 November 2013, (ii) the articles of association of Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands III B.V. as included in its Deed of Incorporation and (iii) the articles of association of Teva Pharmaceutical Finance Netherlands IV B.V. as included in its Deed of Incorporation (together the **Articles of Association**); and
- (c) an extract in respect of each Dutch Company from the Commercial Register, each dated the date of this opinion (together the Extracts).

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in this Registration Statement on Form S-3 of Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited of our report dated February 10, 2021 relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in Teva Pharmaceutical Industries Limited's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020. We also consent to the reference to us under the heading "Experts" in such Registration Statement.

/s/ Kesselman & Kesselman Certified Public Accountants (Isr.) A member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited

Tel-Aviv, Israel October 27, 2021

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York
(Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank)

13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Senior Debt Securities (Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| LIABILITIES | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|---|-----------------------------|
| Deposits: | |
| In domestic offices | 214,188,000 |
| Noninterest-bearing | 90,927,000 |
| Interest-bearing | 123,261,000 |
| In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs | 124,493,000 |
| Noninterest-bearing | 7,607,000 |
| Interest-bearing | 116,886,000 |
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |
| Other borrowed money: | |
| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
| Not applicable | |
| Not applicable | |
| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |
| EQUITY CAPITAL | |
| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |
| Other equity capital components | 0 |
| Total bank equity capital | 28,977,000 |
| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
| m - 11: 1:10: 1 | 204 520 000 |

Total liabilities and equity capital

384,538,000

| I, Emily Portney, Chief Financial Offic my knowledge and belief. | er of the above-named bank do hereby declare that the | is Report of Condition is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|---|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | the correctness of this statement of resources and lial has been prepared in conformance with the instruction | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |
| | | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Subordinated Debt Securities (Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|---|-----------------------------|
| LIABILITIES | |
| Deposits: | |
| In domestic offices | 214,188,000 |
| Noninterest-bearing | 90,927,000 |
| Interest-bearing | 123,261,000 |
| In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs | 124,493,000 |
| Noninterest-bearing | 7,607,000 |
| Interest-bearing | 116,886,000 |
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |
| Other borrowed money: | |
| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
| Not applicable | |
| Not applicable | |
| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |
| EQUITY CAPITAL | |
| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |

11,690,000

16,688,000 -536,000

28,977,000

28,977,000 384,538,000

Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)

Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries
Total equity capital
Total liabilities and equity capital

Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Other equity capital components
Total bank equity capital

| I, Emily Portney, Chief Financial Offic my knowledge and belief. | er of the above-named bank do hereby declare that the | is Report of Condition is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|---|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | the correctness of this statement of resources and lial has been prepared in conformance with the instruction | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |
| | | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE IV, LLC

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 22-1734359 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

400 Interpace Parkway, Building A
Parsippany, NJ 07054
Attention: Asaph Namaan
(Address of principal executive offices)

07054 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel

(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Senior Debt Securities and Guarantees of Senior Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286 And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar | amounts | in | thousands |
|--------|---------|----|-----------|
| | | | |
| | | | |

| IABILITIES Deposits: 214,188,000 In domestic offices 214,188,000 Noninterest-bearing 90,927,000 In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs 123,261,000 In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs 124,493,000 Noninterest-bearing 7,607,000 Interest-bearing in domestic offices 0 Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 8 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 8,793,000 Total purple preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 1,688,000 Other equity capital | | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|---|-----------------------------|
| In domestic offices 214,188,000 Noninterest-bearing 123,261,000 In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs 124,493,000 Noninterest-bearing 7,607,000 Interest-bearing 116,886,000 Interest-bearing 10 Interest-bearing 10 Seclar flunds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 8 Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 9 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: 473,000 (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 9 Subordinated notes and debentures 9 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 3,555,61,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 9 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Other equity capita | LIABILITIES | |
| Noninterest-bearing 90,927,000 Interest-bearing 123,261,000 Noninterest-bearing 7,607,000 Interest-bearing 7,607,000 Interest-bearing 116,886,000 Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 0 Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 0 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 8,793,000 Tegpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 EQUITY CAPITAL 9 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income 536,000 Other equity capi | Deposits: | |
| Interest-bearing 123,261,000 In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs 124,493,000 Noninterest-bearing 7,607,000 Interest-bearing 116,886,000 Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 0 Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable Very Company of the properties | In domestic offices | 214,188,000 |
| In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs 124,493,000 Noninterest-bearing 7,607,000 Interest-bearing 10 Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 8 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 8,793,000 Total labilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 0 Equity Capital preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 6 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 6 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Nonco | Noninterest-bearing | 90,927,000 |
| Noninterest-bearing 7,607,000 Interest-bearing 116,886,000 Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 0 Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 5 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 5 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 11,690,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 123,261,000 |
| Interest-bearing 116,886,000 Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 5 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital (mority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 124,493,000 |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: 473,000 (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 0 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 0 Common stock 1,15,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 7,607,000 |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: | | 116,886,000 |
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: | | |
| Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: | | 0 |
| Other borrowed money: 473,000 Not applicable 8793,000 Not applicable 0 Subordinated notes and debentures 8,793,000 Other liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 9 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 4,801,000 |
| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases)473,000Not applicableSubordinated notes and debentures0Other liabilities8,793,000Total liabilities355,561,000EQUITY CAPITALVery Equity Capital preferred stock and related surplus0Common stock1,135,000Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)11,690,000Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | | 2,813,000 |
| Not applicable Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 0 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | |
| Not applicable 0 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL ***Common stock*** Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | , , | 473,000 |
| Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL -0 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | |
| Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL -0 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | |
| Total liabilities355,561,000EQUITY CAPITAL0Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus0Common stock1,135,000Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)11,690,000Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | | Ţ. |
| EQUITY CAPITALPerpetual preferred stock and related surplus0Common stock1,135,000Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)11,690,000Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus0Common stock1,135,000Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)11,690,000Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |
| Common stock1,135,000Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)11,690,000Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | EQUITY CAPITAL | |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)11,690,000Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
| Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | | 11,690,000 |
| Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | | 16,688,000 |
| Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | | -536,000 |
| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 0 |
| Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 28,977,000 |
| · · · | | |
| Total liabilities and equity capital 384,538,000 | Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
| | Total liabilities and equity capital | 384,538,000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief Financial Offic my knowledge and belief. | er of the above-named bank do hereby declare that | this Report of Condition is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|---|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| We, the undersigned directors, attest to the correctness of this statement of resources and liabilities. We declare that it has been examined by us, and to the best of our knowledge and belief has been prepared in conformance with the instructions and is true and correct. | | |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |
| | | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York
(Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank)

240 Greenwich Street,
New York, N.Y.
(Address of principal executive offices)

13-5160382
(I.R.S. employer identification no.)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE IV, LLC

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Delaware 22-1734359
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

400 Interpace Parkway, Building A
Parsippany, NJ 07054
Attention: Asaph Namaan 07054
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Subordinated Debt Securities and Guarantees of Subordinated Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286 And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar amounts in thousands |
|-----------------------------|
| |
| |
| 214,188,000 |
| 90,927,000 |
| 123,261,000 |
| 124,493,000 |
| 7.607.000 |

116,886,000

| Interest-bearing | |
|---|--|
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | |

In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs

| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
|--|-----------|
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |

Other borrowed money:

| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
|---|---------|
| 57 | |

Not applicable Not applicable

LIABILITIES

In domestic offices Noninterest-bearing Interest-bearing

Noninterest-bearing

Deposits:

| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |

EQUITY CAPITAL

| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |

| Surprus (excitate all surprus related to preferred stock) | 11,000,000 |
|---|------------|
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |

| -550,000 |
|------------|
| 0 |
| 28,977,000 |
| |

| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |

| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| Total liabilities and equity capital | 384 538 000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief Financial Officer of the abomy knowledge and belief. | ove-named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condition is true and correct to the best of |
|--|--|
| | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | less of this statement of resources and liabilities. We declare that it has been examined by us, pared in conformance with the instructions and is true and correct. |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors |
| | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE V, LLC

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 22-1734359 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

400 Interpace Parkway, Building A
Parsippany, NJ 07054
Attention: Corey Sparks
(Address of principal executive offices)

07054 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Senior Debt Securities and Guarantees of Senior Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|--|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. |
| New York | 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |
| (b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers. | |
| Yes. | |

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar amounts in thousands |
|-----------------------------|
| |
| |
| 214,188,000 |
| 90,927,000 |
| 123,261,000 |
| 124,493,000 |
| 7.607.000 |

116,886,000

| Interest-bearing | |
|---|--|
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | |

In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs

| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
|--|-----------|
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |

Other borrowed money:

| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
|---|---------|
| 57 | |

Not applicable Not applicable

LIABILITIES

In domestic offices Noninterest-bearing Interest-bearing

Noninterest-bearing

Deposits:

| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |

EQUITY CAPITAL

| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |

| Surprus (excitate all surprus related to preferred stock) | 11,000,000 |
|---|------------|
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |

| -550,000 |
|------------|
| 0 |
| 28,977,000 |
| |

| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |

| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| Total liabilities and equity capital | 384 538 000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief my knowledge and belief. | f Financial Officer of the above-named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condi | tion is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|--|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | rectors, attest to the correctness of this statement of resources and liabilities. We declare edge and belief has been prepared in conformance with the instructions and is true and co | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE V, LLC

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 22-1734359 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

400 Interpace Parkway, Building A Parsippany, NJ 07054

07054 (Zip code)

Attention: Asaph Namaan (Address of principal executive offices)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Subordinated Debt Securities and Guarantees of Subordinated Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| LIABILITIES | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|---|-----------------------------|
| Deposits: | |
| In domestic offices | 214,188,000 |
| Noninterest-bearing | 90,927,000 |
| Interest-bearing | 123,261,000 |
| In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs | 124,493,000 |
| Noninterest-bearing | 7,607,000 |
| Interest-bearing | 116,886,000 |
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |
| Other borrowed money: | |
| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
| Not applicable | |
| Not applicable | |
| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |
| EQUITY CAPITAL | |
| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |
| Other equity capital components | 0 |
| Total bank equity capital | 28,977,000 |
| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
| m - 11: 1:10: 1 | 204 520 000 |

Total liabilities and equity capital

384,538,000

| I, Emily Portney, Chief Financ my knowledge and belief. | Officer of the above-named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condition is true and correct to the best of |
|--|--|
| | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | est to the correctness of this statement of resources and liabilities. We declare that it has been examined by us, elief has been prepared in conformance with the instructions and is true and correct. |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE VI, LLC

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 22-1734359 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

400 Interpace Parkway, Building A
Parsippany, NJ 07054
Attention: Asaph Namaan
(Address of principal executive offices)

07054 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Senior Debt Securities and Guarantees of Senior Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar amounts in thousands |
|-----------------------------|
| |
| |
| 214,188,000 |
| 90,927,000 |
| 123,261,000 |
| 124,493,000 |
| 7.607.000 |

116,886,000

| Interest-bearing | |
|---|--|
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | |

In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs

| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
|--|-----------|
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |

Other borrowed money:

| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
|---|---------|
| 57 | |

Not applicable Not applicable

LIABILITIES

In domestic offices Noninterest-bearing Interest-bearing

Noninterest-bearing

Deposits:

| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |

EQUITY CAPITAL

| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |

| Surplus (enclude an surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,000,000 |
|---|------------|
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |

| -550,000 |
|------------|
| 0 |
| 28,977,000 |
| |

| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |

| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| Total liabilities and equity capital | 384 538 000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief Financial Office my knowledge and belief. | er of the above-named bank do hereby declare that | this Report of Condition is true and correct to the best of |
|---|--|--|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , | the correctness of this statement of resources and las been prepared in conformance with the instruction | iabilities. We declare that it has been examined by us, ons and is true and correct. |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |
| | | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY

UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE VI, LLC

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

22-1734359 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

400 Interpace Parkway, Building A
Parsippany, NJ 07054
Attention: Asaph Namaan
(Address of principal executive offices)

07054 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel

(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Subordinated Debt Securities and Guarantees of Subordinated Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar amounts in thousands |
|-----------------------------|
| |
| |
| 214,188,000 |
| 90,927,000 |
| 123,261,000 |
| 124,493,000 |
| 7.607.000 |

116,886,000

| Interest-bearing | |
|---|--|
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | |

In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs

| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
|--|-----------|
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |

Other borrowed money:

| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
|---|---------|
| 57 | |

Not applicable Not applicable

LIABILITIES

In domestic offices Noninterest-bearing Interest-bearing

Noninterest-bearing

Deposits:

| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |

EQUITY CAPITAL

| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |

| Surprus (excitate all surprus related to preferred stock) | 11,000,000 |
|---|------------|
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |

| -550,000 |
|------------|
| 0 |
| 28,977,000 |
| |

| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |

| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| Total liabilities and equity capital | 384 538 000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief Financial Offic my knowledge and belief. | er of the above-named bank do hereby declare that the | is Report of Condition is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|---|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | the correctness of this statement of resources and lial has been prepared in conformance with the instruction | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |
| | | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS II B.V.

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Netherlands (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

Piet Heinkade 107
1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands
Attention: Bibianne Bon
(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Senior Debt Securities and Guarantees of Senior Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar amounts in thousands |
|-----------------------------|
| |
| |
| 214,188,000 |
| 90,927,000 |
| 123,261,000 |
| 124,493,000 |
| 7.607.000 |

116,886,000

| Interest-bearing | |
|---|--|
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | |

In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs

| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
|--|-----------|
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |

Other borrowed money:

| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
|---|---------|
| 57 | |

Not applicable Not applicable

LIABILITIES

In domestic offices Noninterest-bearing Interest-bearing

Noninterest-bearing

Deposits:

| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |

EQUITY CAPITAL

| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |

| Surprus (excitate all surprus related to preferred stock) | 11,000,000 |
|---|------------|
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |

| -550,000 |
|------------|
| 0 |
| 28,977,000 |
| |

| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |

| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| Total liabilities and equity capital | 384 538 000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief Financial Offic my knowledge and belief. | er of the above-named bank do hereby declare that the | is Report of Condition is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|---|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | the correctness of this statement of resources and lial has been prepared in conformance with the instruction | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |
| | | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS II B.V.

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Netherlands

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

Piet Heinkade 107
1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands
Attention: Bibianne Bon
(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Subordinated Debt Securities and Guarantees of Subordinated Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address | |
|---|---|--|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 | |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 | |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 | |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 | |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286 And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar amounts in thousands |
|-----------------------------|
| |
| |
| 214,188,000 |
| 90,927,000 |
| 123,261,000 |
| 124,493,000 |
| 7.607.000 |

116,886,000

| Interest-bearing | |
|---|--|
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | |

In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs

| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
|--|-----------|
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |

Other borrowed money:

| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
|---|---------|
| 57 | |

Not applicable Not applicable

LIABILITIES

In domestic offices Noninterest-bearing Interest-bearing

Noninterest-bearing

Deposits:

| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |

EQUITY CAPITAL

| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |

| Surprus (excitate all surprus related to preferred stock) | 11,000,000 |
|---|------------|
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |

| -550,000 |
|------------|
| 0 |
| 28,977,000 |
| |

| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |

| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| Total liabilities and equity capital | 384 538 000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief my knowledge and belief. | f Financial Officer of the above-named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condi | tion is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|--|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | rectors, attest to the correctness of this statement of resources and liabilities. We declare edge and belief has been prepared in conformance with the instructions and is true and co | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS III B.V.

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Netherlands

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

Piet Heinkade 107
1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands
Attention: Bibianne Bon
(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Senior Debt Securities and Guarantees of Senior Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar amounts in thousands |
|-----------------------------|
| |
| |
| 214,188,000 |
| 90,927,000 |
| 123,261,000 |
| 124,493,000 |
| 7.607.000 |

116,886,000

| Interest-bearing | |
|---|--|
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | |

In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs

| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
|--|-----------|
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |

Other borrowed money:

| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
|---|---------|
| 57 | |

Not applicable Not applicable

LIABILITIES

In domestic offices Noninterest-bearing Interest-bearing

Noninterest-bearing

Deposits:

| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |

EQUITY CAPITAL

| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |

| Surprus (excitate all surprus related to preferred stock) | 11,000,000 |
|---|------------|
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |

| -550,000 |
|------------|
| 0 |
| 28,977,000 |
| |

| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |

| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| Total liabilities and equity capital | 384 538 000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief my knowledge and belief. | f Financial Officer of the above-named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condi | tion is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|--|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | rectors, attest to the correctness of this statement of resources and liabilities. We declare edge and belief has been prepared in conformance with the instructions and is true and co | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS III B.V.

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Netherlands (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

Piet Heinkade 107
1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands
Attention: Bibianne Bon
(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Subordinated Debt Securities and Guarantees of Subordinated Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar amounts in thousands |
|-----------------------------|
| |
| |
| 214,188,000 |
| 90,927,000 |
| 123,261,000 |
| 124,493,000 |
| 7.607.000 |

116,886,000

| Interest-bearing | |
|---|--|
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | |

In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs

| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
|--|-----------|
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |

Other borrowed money:

| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
|---|---------|
| 57 | |

Not applicable Not applicable

LIABILITIES

In domestic offices Noninterest-bearing Interest-bearing

Noninterest-bearing

Deposits:

| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |

EQUITY CAPITAL

| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |

| Surprus (excitate all surprus related to preferred stock) | 11,000,000 |
|---|------------|
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |

| -550,000 |
|------------|
| 0 |
| 28,977,000 |
| |

| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |

| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| Total liabilities and equity capital | 384 538 000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief my knowledge and belief. | f Financial Officer of the above-named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condit | tion is true and correct to the best of |
|--|--|--|
| | C | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | irectors, attest to the correctness of this statement of resources and liabilities. We declare edge and belief has been prepared in conformance with the instructions and is true and co | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS IV B.V.

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Netherlands (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

Piet Heinkade 107
1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands
Attention: Bibianne Bon
(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Senior Debt Securities and Guarantees of Senior Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar amounts in | ı thousands |
|-------------------|-------------|
|-------------------|-------------|

| Deposits: 214,18,000 Noninterest-bearing 90,927,000 In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs 123,261,000 Noninterest-bearing 124,493,000 Noninterest-bearing subsidiaries, and IBFs 124,493,000 Noninterest-bearing subsidiaries, and IBFs 16,886,000 Interest-bearing subsidiaries, and IBFs subsidiaries subsidiar | LIABILITIES | Donai amounts in thousands |
|--|---|----------------------------|
| Noninterest-bearing 90,927,000 Interest-bearing 123,261,000 In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs 124,493,000 Noninterest-bearing 7,607,000 Interest-bearing 116,886,000 Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 2,813,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 8,793,000 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 8,793,000 Total preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Other equity capital components 0 Otal bank equity capital 28,977,000 | Deposits: | |
| Interest-bearing 123,261,000 In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs 124,493,000 Noninterest-bearing 7,607,000 Interest-bearing 116,886,000 Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: **** Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: *** (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable *** Not applicable 0 Other liabilities \$ Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities \$793,000 Total liabilities \$793,000 Texpetual preferred stock and related surplus \$ Common stock \$70 Common stock \$ Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) \$1,688,000 Retained earnings \$6,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income 536,000 Other | In domestic offices | 214,188,000 |
| In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs 124,493,000 Noninterest-bearing 7,607,000 Interest-bearing 116,886,000 Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 0 Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable Variable Not applicable 8,793,000 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 10 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 6 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital (principy) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | Noninterest-bearing | 90,927,000 |
| Noninterest-bearing 7,607,000 Interest-bearing 116,886,000 Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 0 Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable Very Capital Securities Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 0 Equity Capital preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital (princity) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 123,261,000 |
| Interest-bearing 116,886,000 Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 5 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 0 Erepetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 11,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Othat pequity capital (specified supplied in the specified sup | | 124,493,000 |
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 6 Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable Very complete of the properties of the prope | | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices 0 Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 80 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 1 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 11,50,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 116,886,000 |
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 8793,000 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 9 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | |
| repurchase 4,801,000 Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: | | 0 |
| Trading liabilities 2,813,000 Other borrowed money: (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 8 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 9 Common stock 1,135,000 Supplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | <u> </u> | |
| Other borrowed money: 473,000 (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) 473,000 Not applicable 8793,000 Subordinated notes and debentures 6 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 9 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 4,801,000 |
| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases)473,000Not applicableSubordinated notes and debentures0Other liabilities8,793,000Total liabilities355,561,000EQUITY CAPITALTerpetual preferred stock and related surplus0Common stock1,135,000Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)11,690,000Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |
| Not applicable Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | Other borrowed money: | |
| Not applicable 0 Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL -0 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 473,000 |
| Subordinated notes and debentures 0 Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | |
| Other liabilities 8,793,000 Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL -0 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | |
| Total liabilities 355,561,000 EQUITY CAPITAL 0 Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus 0 Common stock 1,135,000 Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) 11,690,000 Retained earnings 16,688,000 Accumulated other comprehensive income -536,000 Other equity capital components 0 Total bank equity capital 28,977,000 Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 0 |
| EQUITY CAPITALPerpetual preferred stock and related surplus0Common stock1,135,000Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)11,690,000Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus0Common stock1,135,000Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)11,690,000Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |
| Common stock1,135,000Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)11,690,000Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | EQUITY CAPITAL | |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock)11,690,000Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
| Retained earnings16,688,000Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income-536,000Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | | |
| Other equity capital components0Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | | 16,688,000 |
| Total bank equity capital28,977,000Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries0Total equity capital28,977,000 | | -536,000 |
| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries 0 Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 0 |
| Total equity capital 28,977,000 | | 28,977,000 |
| | | |
| Total liabilities and equity capital 384,538,000 | Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
| | Total liabilities and equity capital | 384,538,000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief Financial Offic my knowledge and belief. | er of the above-named bank do hereby declare that the | is Report of Condition is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|---|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | the correctness of this statement of resources and lial has been prepared in conformance with the instruction | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |
| | | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS IV B.V.

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Netherlands (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

Piet Heinkade 107
1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands
Attention: Bibianne Bon
(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Subordinated Debt Securities and Guarantees of Subordinated Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar amounts in thousands |
|-----------------------------|
| |
| |
| 214,188,000 |
| 90,927,000 |
| 123,261,000 |
| 124,493,000 |
| 7.607.000 |

116,886,000

| Interest-bearing | |
|---|--|
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | |

In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs

| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
|--|-----------|
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |

Other borrowed money:

| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
|---|---------|
| 57 | |

Not applicable Not applicable

LIABILITIES

In domestic offices Noninterest-bearing Interest-bearing

Noninterest-bearing

Deposits:

| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |

EQUITY CAPITAL

| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |

| Surprus (excitate all surprus related to preferred stock) | 11,000,000 |
|---|------------|
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |

| -550,000 |
|------------|
| 0 |
| 28,977,000 |
| |

| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |

| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| Total liabilities and equity capital | 384 538 000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief Financial Offic my knowledge and belief. | er of the above-named bank do hereby declare that the | is Report of Condition is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|---|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | the correctness of this statement of resources and lial has been prepared in conformance with the instruction | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |
| | | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM T-1

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York (Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank) 13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS III B.V.

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Netherlands (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

Piet Heinkade 107
1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands
Attention: Bibianne Bon
(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Senior Debt Securities and Guarantees of Senior Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286

And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|---|---|
| LIABILITIES | |
| Deposits: | |
| In domestic offices | 214,188,000 |
| Noninterest-bearing | 90,927,000 |
| Interest-bearing | 123,261,000 |
| In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs | 124,493,000 |
| Noninterest-bearing | 7,607,000 |
| Interest-bearing | 116,886,000 |
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |
| Other borrowed money: | |
| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
| Not applicable | |
| Not applicable | |
| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |
| EQUITY CAPITAL | |
| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |
| Other equity capital components | 0 |
| Total bank equity capital | 28,977,000 |
| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
| Total liabilities and equity capital | 384,538,000 |
| 1 7 1 | ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief my knowledge and belief. | f Financial Officer of the above-named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condi | tion is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|--|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | rectors, attest to the correctness of this statement of resources and liabilities. We declare edge and belief has been prepared in conformance with the instructions and is true and co | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

STATEMENT OF ELIGIBILITY UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939 OF A CORPORATION DESIGNATED TO ACT AS TRUSTEE

☐ CHECK IF AN APPLICATION TO DETERMINE ELIGIBILITY OF A TRUSTEE PURSUANT TO SECTION 305(b)(2)

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

(Exact name of trustee as specified in its charter)

New York
(Jurisdiction of incorporation if not a U.S. national bank)

13-5160382 (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. (Address of principal executive offices)

10286 (Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL FINANCE NETHERLANDS II B.V.

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Netherlands

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

Piet Heinkade 107
1019 GM Amsterdam, Netherlands
Attention: Bibianne Bon
(Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Exact name of obligor as specified in its charter)

Israel

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Not Applicable (I.R.S. employer identification no.)

124 Dvora Hanevi'a Street Tel Aviv, 6944020, Israel (Address of principal executive offices)

(Zip code)

Senior Debt Securities and Guarantees of Senior Debt Securities

(Title of the indenture securities)

1. General information. Furnish the following information as to the Trustee:

(a) Name and address of each examining or supervising authority to which it is subject.

| Name | Address |
|---|---|
| Superintendent of the Department of Financial Services of the State of New York | One State Street, New York, N.Y. 10004-1417, and Albany, N.Y. 12223 |
| Federal Reserve Bank of New York | 33 Liberty Street, New York, N.Y. 10045 |
| Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation | 550 17th Street, NW Washington, D.C. 20429 |
| The Clearing House Association L.L.C. | 100 Broad Street New York, N.Y. 10004 |

(b) Whether it is authorized to exercise corporate trust powers.

Yes.

2. Affiliations with Obligor.

If the obligor is an affiliate of the trustee, describe each such affiliation.

None.

16. List of Exhibits.

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on file with the Commission, are incorporated herein by reference as an exhibit hereto, pursuant to Rule 7a-29 under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the "Act").

1. A copy of the Organization Certificate of The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as The Bank of New York, itself formerly Irving Trust Company) as now in effect, which contains the authority to commence business and a grant of powers to exercise corporate trust powers. (Exhibit 1 to Amendment No. 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-6215, Exhibits 1a and 1b to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-29637, Exhibit 1 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 33-152735).

- 4. A copy of the existing By-laws of the Trustee (Exhibit 4 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229494).
- 6. The consent of the Trustee required by Section 321(b) of the Act (Exhibit 6 to Form T-1 filed with Registration Statement No. 333-229519).
- 7. A copy of the latest report of condition of the Trustee published pursuant to law or to the requirements of its supervising or examining authority.

SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, the trustee, The Bank of New York Mellon, a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, has duly caused this statement of eligibility to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, all in the City of Pittsburgh, and State of Pennsylvania, on the 21st day of October 2021.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

By: /s/ Shannon Matthews

Name: Shannon Matthews

Title: Agent

Consolidated Report of Condition of

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON

of 240 Greenwich Street, New York, N.Y. 10286 And Foreign and Domestic Subsidiaries,

a member of the Federal Reserve System, at the close of business June 30, 2021, published in accordance with a call made by the Federal Reserve Bank of this District pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Reserve Act.

| | Dollar amounts in thousands |
|--|-----------------------------|
| ASSETS | |
| Cash and balances due from depository institutions: | |
| Noninterest-bearing balances and currency and coin | 4,418,000 |
| Interest-bearing balances | 142,659,000 |
| Securities: | |
| Held-to-maturity securities | 52,321,000 |
| Available-for-sale debt securities | 102,839,000 |
| Equity securities with readily determinable fair values not held for trading | 67,000 |
| Federal funds sold and securities purchased under agreements to resell: | |
| Federal funds sold in domestic offices | 0 |
| Securities purchased under agreements to resell | 13,933,000 |
| Loans and lease financing receivables: | |
| Loans and leases held for sale | 0 |
| Loans and leases held for investment | 29,525,000 |
| LESS: Allowance for loan and lease losses | 229,000 |
| Loans and leases held for investment, net of allowance | 29,296,000 |
| Trading assets | 11,289,000 |
| Premises and fixed assets (including capitalized leases) | 2,938,000 |
| Other real estate owned | 1,000 |
| Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies | 1,603,000 |
| Direct and indirect investments in real estate ventures | 0 |
| Intangible assets | 6,971,000 |
| Other assets | 16,203,000 |
| Total assets | 384,538,000 |

| Dollar amounts in thousands |
|-----------------------------|
| |
| |
| 214,188,000 |
| 90,927,000 |
| 123,261,000 |
| 124,493,000 |
| 7.607.000 |

116,886,000

| Interest-bearing | |
|---|--|
| Federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreements to repurchase: | |
| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | |

In foreign offices, Edge and Agreement subsidiaries, and IBFs

| Federal funds purchased in domestic offices | 0 |
|--|-----------|
| Securities sold under agreements to repurchase | 4,801,000 |
| Trading liabilities | 2,813,000 |

Other borrowed money:

| (includes mortgage indebtedness and obligations under capitalized leases) | 473,000 |
|---|---------|
| 57 | |

Not applicable Not applicable

LIABILITIES

In domestic offices Noninterest-bearing Interest-bearing

Noninterest-bearing

Deposits:

| Subordinated notes and debentures | 0 |
|-----------------------------------|-------------|
| Other liabilities | 8,793,000 |
| Total liabilities | 355,561,000 |

EQUITY CAPITAL

| Perpetual preferred stock and related surplus | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Common stock | 1,135,000 |
| Surplus (exclude all surplus related to preferred stock) | 11,690,000 |

| Surprus (excitate all surprus related to preferred stock) | 11,000,000 |
|---|------------|
| Retained earnings | 16,688,000 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | -536,000 |

| -550,000 |
|------------|
| 0 |
| 28,977,000 |
| |

| Noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated subsidiaries | 0 |
|--|------------|
| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |

| Total equity capital | 28,977,000 |
|--------------------------------------|-------------|
| Total liabilities and equity capital | 384 538 000 |

| I, Emily Portney, Chief my knowledge and belief. | f Financial Officer of the above-named bank do hereby declare that this Report of Condi | tion is true and correct to the best of |
|--|---|--|
| | | Emily Portney Chief Financial Officer |
| , , | rectors, attest to the correctness of this statement of resources and liabilities. We declare edge and belief has been prepared in conformance with the instructions and is true and co | • |
| Thomas P. Gibbons Samuel C. Scott Joseph J. Echevarria | Directors | |